
 
 
 
 

South Eastern University of Sri Lanka 
University Park 

Oluvil 

 

The Annual Report of the South Eastern University of Sri Lanka 
provides a comprehensive summary of institutional overview of 

the Academic activities and achievements. The information 
contained here is submitted by the respective departments and 

compiled by the Information and Statistics Unit. 

Annual Report 

2018 



 

 
  

i 

 

Annual Report 2018|South Eastern University of Sri Lanka 

  

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 



 

 
  

ii 

 

Annual Report 2018|South Eastern University of Sri Lanka 

 

 

 

 

 

Vision 

An Internationally Renowned Center in South 

Asia for Higher Learning and Innovations in 

Sciences, Technologies and 

Humanities. 
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Mission 

To Provide Expanded Opportunities for Higher 

Learning of International Standards through 

Generation and Dissemination of Knowledge 

and Innovations Focused on Regional and 

National Needs Social Harmony and 

Stakeholders' Empowerment and  

Satisfaction. 
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Vice Chancellor‟s Message 

 

The annual report of the South Eastern University of Sri Lanka for 2018 is 

presented highlighting the overall achievements of the University based on 

achievements of students, academics and non-academic staff. The Annual 

Report also elaborates the contributions made in social and national 

development. The Annual Report constructively analyses the achievements in 

light of the strategic plan of the University while emphasizing the 

shortcomings with reasonable justifications for those. 

The University has further improved the performance and the quality of 

services provided in the year 2018 compared to the year 2017 and before. The 

newest Faculty of the University, Faculty of Technology is developed 

systematically in 2018 and this Faculty will contribute more on technological 

knowledge and development of the nation. The other Faculties and Units have 

shown gradual improvements in their performance. The University also has 

witnessed joining many well qualified academics and other staff, improving 

the capability and capacity of the University to provide expanded services. The 

University also witnessed promotion of few academics as Professors further 

increasing the capacity of the University in delivering the services. The 

University also witnessed infrastructure development in 2018 enhancing the 

quality of services provided to the stakeholders.  

I would like to invite all to explore the Annual Report of the South Eastern 

University of Sri Lanka presented for the year 2018. I also would like to express 

my sincere gratitude to all who worked hard to elevate the performance of the 

university in the year 2018. 

 

Prof. M.M.M. Najim  

Vice Chancellor 
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1. Vice Chancellor‟s Review 

Brief introduction  

The South Eastern University of Sri Lanka (SEUSL) was established in 

1995. The main campus, which strategically located along the coastal 

belt of Oluvil, extends over 178.98 acres (As per the land valuation in 

2011) of green pasture. Due to the continuous sea erosion exists in the 

east part of the university (Oluvil premises), university has lost around 

25.45 acres of the land so far. The Faculty of Applied Sciences is located 

in Sammanthurai at an extent of 6.72 acres (As per the land valuation in 

2011), whereas the Faculty of Technology is temporarily housed at the 

Mahapola Center, Oluvil.  The Malwaththa farm (extent of 35.25 acres, 

as valued in 2011), which comes under the purview of the Faculty of 

Technology, is used to conducting practical classes on Agricultural 

Technology.  The University has recorded a tremendous progress in the 

higher education sector.  

The South Eastern University of Sri Lanka has the focus on achieving 

academic excellence and producing employable graduates to cater to the 

demands of both private and public sectors in Sri Lanka and abroad. It 

endeavors to enhance multidisciplinary research culture, serving the 

needs of different stakeholders and the community. In addition, the 

University is greatly contributing to the peace and harmony of the 

region. Presently, SEUSL has six faculties with 4,902 undergraduates 

including three foreign students, 327 postgraduates and 14 Postgraduate 

Diploma students. The University has 594 permanent staff which 

includes 161 academic staff.  

The SEUSL is devoted to earn its name and make it an internationally 

renowned university with its excellent academic caliber. 
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University Council 

The University Council is the Chief Executive Body and governing 

authority. Vice Chancellor is the Chairman by the virtue of the power 

vested on him. It is the final authority to approve the proposals 

submitted by the Senate and the Faculty Boards.  The Sub - Committees 

of the council include Finance Committee, Lands, Building & 

Maintenance Committee, Audit and Management Committee, Tender 

Board and Selection Committees. Registrar is the Secretary of the 

Council.  

 

Ex-Officio Members 

Prof. MMM. Najim   - Vice Chancellor (from 10.08.2018) 

Prof. Uma Coomaraswamy - Competent Authority 

       (from 18.06.2018 to 09.08.2018) 

Prof. MMM. Najim   - Vice Chancellor (upto 17.06.2018) 

Dr. UL. Zainudeen   - Dean /FAS  

Mr. ML. Fouzul Ameer  - Dean/FAC  

Dr. SMM. Mazahir   - Dean /FIA  

Dr. S. Gunapalan   - Dean /FMC 

Dr. SM. Junaideen   - Dean/FE  

Dr. MFM. Thariq   - Dean/FT 

 

Senate Nominees 

Prof. MAM. Rameez   

Prof.MSM. Jalaldeen      - (from 16.05.2018) 



 

 

 

4 Annual Report 2018|South Eastern University of Sri Lanka 

Prof.ALA. Rauf  - Head / Dept. of Accountancy and Finance 

(up to 23.04.2018) 

 

Appointed Members 

Rev. Prof. GF. Rajendram  

Mr. MS. Razzaaq 

Mr. RM. Gunawardena 

Prof. MJS. Wijeyaratne  (from 20.04.2018) 

Mr. AS. Mahroof   (from 20.04.2018) 

Mr. IM. Haniffa   (from 20.04.2018) 

Mr. K. Mohamed Thamby  (from 20.04.2018) 

Prof. MIM. Mowjood  (from 20.04.2018) 

Mr. IM. Mustapha   (from 20.04.2018) 

Dr. AMPDK. Adikari  (from 28.12.2018) 

Dr. PKCL. Jayasinghe  (up to 03.11.2018)      

Mr. MMSK. Bandara Mapa (up to 19.04.2018)    

Dr. MAM. Nuhman  (up to 19.04.2018) 

Dr. DARK. Dayaratne  (up to 19.04.2018) 

Eng. S. Abdul Rasheed  (up to 19.04.2018) 

Eng. ZAM. Nawzar   (up to 19.04.2018) 

Mr. DM. Siriwardene  (up to 19.04.2018) 

 

Secretary 

Mr. H. Abdul Saththar  Registrar 
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University Senate 

The Senate is the academic authoritative body. It controls and generally 

directs the activities of teaching, learning, research, designing 

curriculum and examination systems of the University through the 

channels of faculties, Departments and Units empowered with the 

responsibilities for good academic results and to the University 

communities and public. It approves and recommends the proposals 

submitted by the Faculties to the Council for final approval. Sub - 

Committees of the Senate include Library Committee, Study Leave and 

Awards Committee, Admission Committee, Research & Publication 

Committee and Curriculum and Evaluation Committee. Registrar is the 

Secretary of the Senate. 

 

Ex-Officio Members 

Prof. MMM. Najim   - Vice Chancellor (from 10.08.2018) 

Prof. Uma Coomaraswamy - Competent Authority 

       (from 18.06.2018 to 09.08.2018) 

Prof. MMM. Najim   - Vice Chancellor (upto 17.06.2018) 

Dr. UL. Zainudeen   - Dean / FAS  

Mr. ML. Fouzul Ameer  - Dean / FAC  

Dr. SMM. Mazahir   - Dean / FIA  

Dr. S. Gunapalan   - Dean / FMC 

Dr. SM. Junaideen   - Dean / FE  

Dr. MFM. Thariq   - Dean / FT 

Prof. MAM. Rameez    

Prof. Ms. FHA. Rauf 

Mr. MM Rifaudeen    - Librarian (from 10.05.2018) 

Mrs. MM. Mashroofa  - Actg. Librarian (up to 09.05.2018) 
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Prof.ALA. Rauf - Head / Dept. of Accountancy and 

Finance (up to 26.04.2018) 

Dr. AR. Nasar    - Head /Arabic Language 

Mr. AN. Ahmed   - Head / Biological Sciences  

Mr. MM. Fazil   - Head / Political Sciences 

Dr. ULA. Majeed - Head / Biosystems Technology 

(from 01.06.2018) 

Dr. BGN. Sewwandi  - Head / Biosystems Technology  

(up to 31.05.2018) 

Dr. SM. Ahamed Lebbe   - Head / Economics and Statistics  

Dr. AMM. Navaz   - Head / ELT  

Mr. MHM. Nairoos    - Head / Islamic Studies 

Ms. MASF. Saadiya   - Head / Languages 

Mrs. Safeena MG Hassan   - Head / Management 

Dr. K. Komathiraj   - Head / Mathematical Science 

Mr. MF. Nawas   - Head / Physical Sciences 

Mr. ILM. Mahir    - Head / Social Sciences  

Dr. A. Rameez   - Head / Sociology 

Dr. AM. Muzathik   - Head / Mechanical Engineering  

Mr. MBM. Irshad   - Head / MIT  

Dr. JA. Thambo   - Head / Civil Engineering 

Prof. MIM. Kaleel   - Head / Geography  

Eng. MI. Ilham Jazeel  - Head / IDS 

Mr. SL. Abdul Haleem  - Head / ICT 

 

Elected members 

Faculty of Applies Sciences 

Dr. MJM. Jafeen  
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Mr. AL. Hanees  

 

Faculty of Arts and Culture 

Dr. AFM. Ashraff  

Dr. S. Anuzsiya  

 

Faculty of Islamic Studies and Arabic Language 

Prof.MSM. Jalaldeen 

Dr. RA. Sarjoon    (from 10.01.2018) 

 

Faculty of Management and Commerce 

Mr. A. Haleem    (from 13.12.2018) 

Mr. MCA. Nazar    (from 16.07.2018) 

Mr. ALMA. Shameem   (up to 15.07.2018) 

Mrs. MAC. Salfiya Ummah  (up to 12.12.2018) 

 

Faculty of Engineering   

Eng. ALM. Risath  

Eng. MB. Murshid  

 

Faculty of Technology 

Dr. ANM. Mubarak  

Mr. RKA. Rifai Kariapper   (from 19.07.2018) 

Dr. UL. Abdul Majeed   (up to 31.05.2018) 

Secretary 

Mr. H. Abdul Saththar, Registrar 
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Study Programs at SEUSL    

SEUSL has six Faculties namely Arts and Culture, Management and 

Commerce, Applied Sciences, Islamic Studies and Arabic Language, 

Engineering and Technology. SEUSL offers Bachelor and Master 

Degrees, Diploma, Certificate, and different Training programs. The 

University collaborates with local and international organizations in 

conducting programmes to cater to the needs of the local community. 

Academic departments, Units and degree programs offered by the 

faculties are shown in the tables given below. 

 
Table 1.1: Details of Academic Departments and Units 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Faculties Departments/Units 

Faculty of Arts & 
Culture 

Social Sciences, Languages, Political Sciences, 
Sociology, Economics & Statistics ,Geography, 
English Language Teaching, Computer Unit and 
Postgraduate Unit 

Faculty of 
Management & 
Commerce 

Accountancy & Finance, Management,  
Management Information Technology and 
Postgraduate Unit 

Faculty of 
Applied Sciences 

Biological Sciences, Mathematical Sciences and  
Physical Sciences 

Islamic Studies 
and Arabic 
Language 

Islamic Studies and Arabic Language, Inter 
Disciplinary Course Unit 

Faculty of  
Engineering  

Civil Eng., Mechanical Eng. ,Electrical & Electronic 
Eng., Computer Science& Eng. and 
Interdisciplinary Studies 

Technology 
Information and Communication Technology and  
BioSystems Technology  
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Table 1.2: Degree Programs offered by the Faculties (Internal) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Undergraduate Degree Programs Duration Medium 

Faculty of Arts & Culture 

BA (General) (1+2) Years Tamil 

BA (Special) in Political Science and  Peace 
Studies 

(1+3) Years 

Tamil 

BA (Special) in Economics Tamil/English 

BA (Special) in Philosophy and 
psychological Counseling 

Tamil 

BA (Special) in Sociology Tamil/English 

BA (Special) in Geography Tamil/English 

BA (Special) in Tamil Tamil 

BA (Special) in ICT English 

BA (Special) in Teaching English as a 
Second Language (TESL) 

English 

BA (Special) in Hindu Civilization Tamil 

BA (Special) in Trilingual Studies Trilingual 

Faculty of Management   & Commerce 

BBA 
4 Years 

Tamil/English 

B. Com 

English 
 

B.Sc. in Management and Information 
Technology (General) 

3 Years 

BBA (Special) in Accounting 

(2+2) Years 

BBA (Special) in Finance 

BBA (Special) in Marketing Management 

BBA (Special) in Human Resource 
Management 

BBA (Special) in Information System 

Faculty of Applied Sciences 

B.Sc. in Biological Science (General) 3 Years 

English 

B.Sc. in Physical Science (General) 3 Years 

B.Sc. (Special) in Applied Biology (2+2) Years 

B.Sc. (Special) in Botany (2+2) Years 

B.Sc. (Special) in Applied Statistics (2+2) Years 

B.Sc. (Special) in Computer Science (2+2) Years 

B.Sc. (Special) in Chemistry (2+2) Years 

B.Sc. (Special)  in Physics (2+2) Years 

B.Sc. (Special) in Mathematics (2+2) Years 

B.Sc. (Special) in Applied Sciences (3+1) Years 
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Undergraduate Degree Programs Duration Medium 

Faculty of Islamic Studies and Arabic Language 

B.A. (General)  3 Years Tamil 

B.A. (Special) in Islamic Thoughts and Civilization  

(1+3) 
Years 

Tamil 

B.A. (Special) in Islamic Banking and Finance English 

B.A. (Special) in Islamic Law & Legislation Tamil 

B.A. (Special) in Arabic Language and Literature Arabic 

B.A. (Special) in Linguistics and Translation (Arabic) 
Arabic & 
English 

B.A. (Special) in Trilingual Studies (Collaboration 
Programme with Faculty of Arts and Culture) 

Trilingual 

Faculty of  Engineering 

Honours Degree of Bachelor of the Science of 
Engineering in Civil Engineering  

4 Years English 
Honours Degree of Bachelor of the Science of 
Engineering in Mechanical Engineering 

Honours Degree of Bachelor of the Science of 
Engineering in Electrical and Electronic Engineering  

Faculty of Technology 

Bachelor of  Biosystems Technology in Agricultural 
Technology – BBST Hons (Agricultural Technology) 

4 Years 

English 

Bachelor of  Information and Communication 
Technology - BICT Hons 

English 

 

Table 1.3: Certificate level and Diploma Courses (External) 

Certificate Level Courses  

Name of the Course                                                                Duration  Medium 

Certificate in English 06 Months English 

Diploma Courses (Non Postgraduate ) 

Name of the Course                                                                Duration  Medium 

Professional Diploma in Counselling 18 Months Tamil 

Diploma in English 12 Months English 

Diploma in Journalism 12 Months Tamil 
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Table 1.4: Undergraduate Courses (External) 

Undergraduate Courses (External) 

Name of the Course  
Special/ 
General  

Duration  Medium 

Faculty of Arts and Culture 

Bachelor of Arts General 3 Years Tamil 

Faculty of Management and Commerce 

Bachelor of Business 
Administration 

General 3 Years English 
& Tamil 

Bachelor of Commerce General 3 Years 

 

Postgraduate Studies   

The Faculty of Management and Commerce and the Faculty of Arts and 

Culture (FAC) commenced their first postgraduate programmes in the 

year 2010 and 2013 respectively. Postgraduate degree programs offered 

by the faculties are shown in the table 1.5 given below. University has 

produced 15 MBA holders in the year 2018.  

 

Table 1.5: Postgraduate Courses 

 

New study programs to be commenced 

SEUSL has taken steps to offer many new degree programs in order to 

cater to the needs of the country. FAC has submitted proposal to 

commence PhD programme in Tamil to the UGC and awaiting approval.  

Faculty Postgraduate Programs Duration Medium 

Faculty of arts and Culture 

M.Phil.in Tamil 02 Years Tamil 

M.A.in Tamil 02 Years Tamil 

Pg Dip.in Tamil 01 Year Tamil 

Faculty of Management and Commerce 

Master of Business Administration (MBA) 02 Years English 

Pg Dip.in Management (PGDM) 01 Year English 

Faculty of Applied Sciences 

Pg Dip.in Applied Statistics  01 Year English 
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World Ranking  

Webomatrics ranking of the South Eastern University of Sri Lanka is 

9,004 in January 2019. Measures are being taken to improve the world 

ranking of the SEUSL in a very competitive world where educational 

institutions are striving hard to offer better services.   

 

Distribution of Academic Staff 

Table 1.6: Distribution of Academic Staff (Teaching Staff) based on their Designation as at 
31st December 2018 

Category No of Staff 

Professors 4 

Associate Professors 2 

Senior Lecturers Gr I 49 

Senior Lecturers Gr II 34 

Lecturers/ Lecturer (Probationary) 65 

Total 155 
 

 

 Figure 1.1: Distribution of Academic Staff (Teaching Staff) based on their  
Educational level as at 31st December 2018 

 

 

First degree or 
Postgraduate 

22% 

Master 
34% Mphil. 

10% 

PhD 
34% 
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Entrepreneurship Culture among Graduates  

The university is taking measures to enhance entrepreneurship culture 

among the students. The students will be able to improve their 

entrepreneurial skills through these interventions. 

SEUSL has taken the following strategies to motivate entrepreneurial 

culture. 

 Students from faculties of Management and Commerce, Applied 

Sciences, Engineering and Technology are provided internship 

trainings by private and public sector industries and companies. 

  

 Faculty of Management and Commerce organized Business Fair 

to enhance students’ entrepreneurial skills. 

 

 Career Guidance Unit coordinated the students to participate 

„Imagine IF‟ Boot Camp on Entrepreneurship which organized 

by ICTA (Information & Communication Technology Agency of 

Sri Lanka) at Eastern University of Sri Lanka. 

 

 Workshops on  Personal  Development, Goal   Setting &  Career 

Planning, Confidence Building, Self-Assessment, How to 

overcome the challenges in the work of world, Effective  Decision 

Making for successful  Career  life, Grooming and Attitudes for 

preparing job market, Facing Job Interviews, Dealing with 

conflicts and problems Resolution, Entrepreneurship 

Development, Positive thinking to overcome the challenges in the 

work of world, Effective Teamwork and Leadership Qualities for 

Employability and How to face  job interview were conducted by 

the Career Guidance Unit for the students to prepare them to face 

the competitive job market.  
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 Industrial tours, Short courses, Short Programmes and other 

programs were conducted collaboratively with external 

organizations to enhance the entrepreneurship skills of the 

students.  

 

Ethnic Cohesion  

As the student population of the South Eastern University of Sri Lanka 

is increasing, all the students and staff are provided with opportunities 

to develop skills and awareness related to issues such as culture and 

language. Many cultural activities are organized within the university to 

enhance ethnic harmony and ethnic cohesion.  

The University encouraged students to celebrate different religious and 

cultural functions such as Sinhala and Hindu New Year, Vesak, Poson, 

Nawa Siwa Rathri, Eid, Christmas etc. annually with the participation of 

all three communities. All religions are provided with places of worship 

and religious observances are conducted on regular basis supported by 

the university. 

 

Sustainable Development 

Strategic Plan for the years from 2019 to 2023 was developed. Strategies, 

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) and the targets incorporated with the 

baseline year 2018 related to sustainable development under the 

objective 6.6 “ To enhance our staff and institutional commitments 

towards sustainable development agenda” of the Goal 6 “ Good 

Governance and Sustainability” are given below. 
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Ref Strategies KPIs Target 

6.61. 

Develop our institutional 
policy framework to inform 
our teaching, learning, 
procurement and 
management strategies by 
sustainable development 
agenda 

Student enrolment to 
higher education 

Increase the enrolment 
by another 25% by 
2023 

6.6.2 

Integrate the sustainability 
development strategies into 
our teaching, learning and 
assessment strategies 
preferably through curricula 

Energy efficiency: per 
capita consumption of 
electricity 

Reduce the per capita 
consumption of 
electricity (electricity 
consumption per 
student ) by at least 5% 
by 2023 

6.6.3 

Promote sustainable 
consumption of electricity 
and water resources through 
improved planning, 
supervision and effective 
accountability measures 

Per capita consumption 
of water 

Reduce the per capita 
consumption of 
Water(Water 
consumption per 
student ) by at least 5% 
by 2023 

6.6.4 

Strengthen the internal audit 
division  to underpin our 
commitment to 
sustainability through 
regular and professional 
audit on sustainability 

Share of clean energy: 
percentage of 
electricity generated 
from renewable energy 
sources over total 
electricity consumed 

Increase electricity 
generated from 
renewable energy 
sources to at least 10% 
by 2023 

6.6.5 

Conduct regular  awareness 
and training programmes to 
student, staff, SMEs and 
public to promote their 
engagement towards 
sustainable development 
goals 

  

6.6.6 
Invest on renewable/clean 
energy sources and recycling 
infrastructures. 

  

 

Libraries of South Eastern University of Sri Lanka  

The SEUSL Libraries contributed immensely to the teaching, learning, 

research and community services so as to realize the strategic mission of 

the University by offering access to high quality information resources, 

physical and digital learning environments and qualified support to the 

University’s students, faculties and researchers in the year 2018. This 

year has been a time of consolidation to support for the academic 
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improvement. Many of the key services offered by the library have seen 

significant uptake over this period as follows; 

 

1. Information Resources: Print and Electronic Collections 

The South Eastern University Library system serves the informational 

needs of students, staff, researchers, visitors, alumni and the general 

public. Library this year has purchased 1385 printed books to the value 

of 11,951,562.02 to meet the needs of the users of all faculties. The 

Library’s holdings were augmented by generous donations from 

individuals and organizations.The details are given below. 

 

Items 

Main Library Science Library 

Total no 
recieved 

Value 
Total no 
recieved 

Value 

Books 338 Rs. 175,715.75 55 Rs. 32,959.00 

Periodicals 37 Rs. 17,570.00 21 Rs. 5808.25 

  
Scholarly e-resources such as Emerald Insight, Oxford Journals Online 

and Taylor and Francis Online which were acquired during the year 

with the financial support of Consortia for Academic Libraries 

(CONSAL), University Grants Commission. More than 4442 full text 

articles have been downloaded by the library users for their teaching, 

learning and research purposes during the year 2018.  
 

Many research articles which are not accessible to the SEUSL Libraries 

were delivered to SEUSL academics on demand in-order to facilitate 

them for research and publications. through networks of other 

university libraries and Document Delivery Services of the Consortium 

of Academic Libraries of Sri Lanka (CONSAL), Funded by the 

University Grants Commission of Sri Lanka and hosted by the Library, 

University of Colombo 
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2. Institutional Repository  

The Institutional Repository has now passed another milestone, its 

2,836th item having been deposited as at 31st December, 2018. Rare 

books written in Arabic-Tamil are digitized and created a Digital 

Archive. It was officially launched “Arabic-Tamil repository” on 12th 

December 2018.  

 

3. Circulation of Books: 

Library had a combined total of 34,155 check-ins/checkouts as recorded 

in Library Management System.  

 

4. Revenue collected – Overdue fine 

Rs 60,550.00 was collected as overdue fine from the students of Main 

Library users in the year 2018. 

 
5. Research Publications and Contributions: Scholarly Communication 

Throughout 2018, the libraries worked intensively together with the 

faculties of University and provide editorial assistance in order to 

prepare the faculty journals and symposium proceedings and supported 

the research and development in the university. 

University Libraries actively involved in the 8th International Research 

Symposium – 2018 by conducting a separate track on Library and 

Information Science organized by the University. Further the University 

Newsletter was compiled and edited by the contribution of the staff of 

University Libraries. 

Further, Library academic staff took part in reviewing the research 

papers and presenting and contributing their manuscripts in the 

Journals and research proceedings. 
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SEUSL Library was provided access to Plagiarism Detection Tool – 

“URKUND” with the financial support of University Grants 

Commission of Sri Lanka since August 2018. 479 papers have been 

checked by the university community since August to 31st December 

2018. 

 

6. Special Events and Activities 

i. Stock verification of library books and periodicals as at 31st December, 

2017. 
 

ii. Conservation and Preservation of SEUSL library materials  

 

iii. Updating the Cataloguing records of Library Books Database  

 

iv. Evaluated 9283 personal collection of donated books received from 

different scholars/ donors and chosen 2783 books which were enriched 

with Library collection 

 

v. Libraries of SEUSL conducted several information literacy and user 

education and guest lecture programs to promote information literacy 

skills and reading promotion among the users. 

 

vi. Several workshops and seminars were conducted to promote the 

knowledge and skills of the library staff on “Cataloguing Theories”, 

KOHA LMS during the year 2018.  

 

vii. Library academic staff participated several “outreach and Reading 

Camp programme” in various libraries to support promoting the library 

information profession during the year 2018. 
  

 vi. Library participated in several subject review programme of the 

faculties during the year 2018. 
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Remarkable activities at SEUSL 

 The 12th General Convocation of the South Eastern University of Sri 

Lanka was held at Bandaranayake Memorial International 

Conference Hall (BMICH) on 1st April, 2018.Altogether 1475 

students (Internal, External and Postgraduate) who have 

successfully completed their Degrees were conferred at this 

Convocation held in three sessions. 

 

 Two Workshops on the theme "National Unity and Reconciliation 

through Higher Education" organized by the Office for National 

Unity and Reconciliation (ONUR) housed in the Faculty of 

Engineering of the South Eastern University of Sri Lanka.  

 

 

 

 A Camp for blood donation organized by the Students Union of 

Faculty of Management and Commerce with the assistance of the 

Department of the Student Support Services of the South Eastern 

University of Sri Lanka.  

 

 The ceremonial launch of "Online Journal" organized by the Faculty 

of Islamic Studies and Arabic Language of South Eastern University 
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of Sri Lanka was held at the FIA Auditorium.  

 

 

 Reading Month Celebration with Book Launch was organized by 

Faculty of Islamic Studies and Arabic Languages. 

 

 Students from different schools in Sabragamuwa Province who are 

following US Governmental funded English Access Micro 

http://www.seu.ac.lk/fia/news/index.php?fun=shownews&id=181001
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scholarship Program at Smart International Band arawela, visited 

the Department of English of the South Eastern University of Sri 

Lanka to follow a session on communication skills. 

  
South Eastern University of Sri Lanka, drafts strategic plan for the 

years from 2019 to 2023 in an interactive three days participatory 

workshop. 

 
The main 

objectives of 

this 

workshop are 

to review and 

evaluate the 

cumulative 

progress of 

the Strategic 

 
Plan 2014-2018 and to formulate the Strategic Plan 2019-2023. In the 

meantime, the action plan for 2018 was reviewed. As an output, 

Draft Strategic Plan-2019-2023, Action Plan and the Budget for the 

financial year 2019 were finalized.  

 

 Student's Research Forum is an official association that has been 



 

 

 

22 Annual Report 2018|South Eastern University of Sri Lanka 

successfully leading in the faculty of Islamic Studies and Arabic 

Language, South Eastern University of Sri Lanka. Thus, a book and 

magazine launching ceremony was organized and held on 12th 

December 2018 as an important milestone in the history of SRF. 

 

 As a collaborative event in commemoration with World Youth Skills 

Day 2018, CISCO Networking Academy, Faculty of Technology, 

South Eastern University of Sri Lanka and WUSC (World University 

Services of Canada) organized a half a day event. As stakeholders 

promoting IT sector in Sri Lanka this event brought about 200 youth 

ranging from IT undergraduates at the University and other 

Vocational Training Institutions in Ampara District. 

 

 The 5th International Symposium 2018 on the theme "Sustainable 

Development through Arabic and Islamic Studies" organised by the 

Faculty of Islamic Studies and Arabic Language (FIA), South 

Eastern University of Sri Lanka was held on 29th November 2018.  
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Achievements:  

 Quality assurance review for seven study programs has been 

completed. In which, three programs have secured B grades while 

four programs have secured C grades. University has taken 

initiatives to improve the gradings in future reviews through 

improving Quality Assurance System within the university. 

 
 University was able to conduct five international and local research 

conferences in which a total of 404 papers were published. 18 

international participants presented their papers in these 

conferences. 

 
 During the year 2018, The University as a whole could publish 48 

number of research articles in indexed and refereed journals 

nationally and internationally.  

  
 Total number of publications during the year 2018 was 246. 

 
 Employability ratio has increased to 53.44 Percent. This is attributed 

by various measures initiated by the university. 

 
 University could expand the student enrolment by 13.18 percent 

compared to the year 2017 through enhancing access for higher 

education of the national policy. 

 
 The usage of Learning Management System (LMS) for teaching and 

learning purposes has comparatively increased and initiatives are 

getting underway to maintain the LMS and ICT advancements in 

teaching and learning activities. 

 
 As at end of 2018, a total of 52 acadamic staff completed their PhDs. 
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 Number of staff have been promoted to the post of professors were 6 

as at end of 2018. 

 
 Students participated in 19 tournaments during 2018; they won 18 

medals and 12 Awards. 

 
 During the year 2018, University could complete the Strategic Plan 

for the year 2019-2023, the next time horizon through successful 

consultation and participation. The Strategic Plan is expected to be 

launched in the first quater of 2019. 

 
 Hostel facilities are substancially developed and all the eligible 

students are provided with accommodation. 

 
 Action plan and Procument plan were completed in a comprehensive 

manner. 

 
 The university received 12 number of audit queries in the previous 

year 2017 and had managed to minimize the number of audit queries 

up to 6 in the current year.Which indicates that the internal control 

system of the university has enhanced their efficiency of the activities 

from year by year. 
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Failures and Justification 

i. Capital budget was not optimally used due to delayed 

procurements caused by trade union action and students blockages 

of the administrative premises. 

 
ii. The sea erosion continued to exist in the east part of the land of the 

University. The university could not arrest the issue with the current 

scale of capital allocation. 

 
iii. The university is facing the threat of floods during the rainy season 

due to overflowing of the Gal Oya. – The University could not get 

the flood protection bund established.  

 
iv. Recruitments: 

The university could not fill the following carder vacancies,  

 Chair Professors even though applications were called - No one 

applied for the posts. The University is taking continuous effort 

to recruit chair professors.  

 

 Permanent medical officers to the Health Center – Doctors are 

not applying to join the university service as they have better 

opportunities at a higher salary under the Ministry of Health. 

However, the Health Center center is functioning with medical 

officers appointed on part time basis.  

 

 Project manager - As engineers with relevant qualification and 

experience are not willing to serve the University at a low salary. 

 

 

 



 

 

 

26 Annual Report 2018|South Eastern University of Sri Lanka 

Future Plans  

i. The existing Strategic Plan expires by the end of 2018 and therefore, 

the university has to plan new strategies for the next five years 

(2019 to 2023). 

 
ii. To perform curriculum revisions of academic programmes 

informed by a consistent and a comprehensive policy for 

curriculum review. 

 
iii. To regularize standard operating policy for regular and standard 

review, upgrading and reviewing of curricula for all study 

programmes. 

 
iv. To conduct curricular consultative programmes for all study 

programmes. 

 
v. To enhance the optimal implementation of LMS. 

 
vi. To undergo quality assurance review of academic programs which 

had not been reviewed and to undergo Institutional review. 

 
vii. To take steps to increase the impact of our researchers. 

 
viii. To initiate the formation of Faculty of Education and Faculty of 

Graduate Studies and steps to form Department of Chemical 

Sciences, Department of Computer Sciences, Department of 

Marketing management and Department of Human Resource 

Management. 

 
ix. To initiate the academic programs those are demanded by the 

society and industry. 
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x. To introduce comprehensive enterprise research plans to automate 

and integrate co-organization functions 

 
xi. To codify the university calendar and policy framework 

 
xii. Qualifying new linkage with other international partners for 

collaborative research. 

 
xiii. To stimulate staff to make of University’s grants and other 

competitive grants. 

 
xiv. Encouraging staffs to upload their research articles in popular 

research networks, such as: Research Gate, Google Scholar, 

Academia, etc. to impact on University’s ranking. 
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2. Details of Resources & Students 

Student population and permanent staff details of all categories as at end of 

December 2018 are shown in table 2.1. 

Table 2.1: Frequency distribution of Students and Permanent Staff 

 

3. Details of Local Students 

Table 3.1: Local Students (New Entrants to Internal Undergraduate Degree 
Programs) 

Faculty 
Programme of 
study 

Year of 
Intake 

Agreed 
Intake 

No. 
Registered 

No. 
following 
the course 

Faculty of Arts and 
Culture 

Arts 2016/2017 350 341 328 

Faculty of Applied 
Science 

Physical Science 
2016/2017 

150 108 103 

Biological Science 150 151 137 

Faculty of Islamic 
Studies And Arabic 
language  

Arabic Language  
2016/2017 

200 197 184 

Islamic Studies  250 253 238 

Faculty of 
Management and 
Commerce 

Management  

2016/2017 

140 130 130 

Commerce 120 117 116 

MIT 120 116 116 

Faculty of Technology 
BST 

2016/2017 
75 81 81 

ICT 75 69 69 

Faculty of Engineering Engineering 2017/2018 100 81 80 

Faculty/Department/ 
Division 

Total No. of 

Students 
Academic 
Staff 

Academic 
Supportive 
Staff 

Admini
strative 
Staff 

Non -
Academic 
Staff 

Vice Chancellor  1    

Faculty of Applied Sciences 638 31 03 01 

385 

Faculty of Arts & Culture 1037 33 03 01 

Faculty of Islamic Studies & 
Arabic Language 

1164 25  01 

Faculty of Management & 
Commerce 

1205 32 03 01 

Faculty of Engineering 550 24 

 

02 

Faculty of Technology 308 9 01 

Library 

 

6 01 

General Administration 

 

23 

Centre for External Degrees 
and Professional Learning 

01 

Physical Education Unit 03 

 
 
 

Information and Statistics 
Unit 

01 

Career guidance Unit 01 

Network Operations Centre 01 

Other Departments  

Total 4902 161 15 32 385 
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Table 3.2:  Local Students Enrolment (Total No. of Students) in Internal 

Undergraduate Degree Programs 

Faculty 
Programme of 
study 

Year of 
study 

Year of 
Intake 

UGC Intake 
(Local Students) 

Male Female Total 

 Faculty of 
Arts and 
Culture 

Arts 1st Year 2016/2017 26 302 328 

Arts 2nd Year 2015/2016 35 315 350 

Arts 3rd Year 2014/2015 23 244 267 

Arts (Special) 4th Year 2013/2014 13 78 91 

Faculty of 
Islamic 
Studies And 
Arabic 
language  

Arabic Language  
1st Year 2016/2017 

60 124 184 

Islamic Studies  39 199 238 

Arabic Language  
2nd Year 2015/2016 

65 121 186 

Islamic Studies  20 150 170 

Arabic Language  
3rd Year 2014/2015 

60 114 174 

Islamic Studies  13 151 164 

Arabic Language  
4th Year 2013/2014 

10 7 17 

Islamic Studies  11 20 31 

Faculty of 
Management 
and 
Commerce 

Management  

1st Year 2016/2017 

53 77 130 

Commerce 40 76 116 

MIT 20 96 116 

Management  

2nd Year 2015/2016 

59 75 134 

Commerce 33 75 108 

MIT 22 88 110 

Management  

3rd Year 2014/2015 

42 82 124 

Commerce 37 55 92 

MIT 23 73 96 

Management  
4th Year 2013/2014 

53 57 110 

Commerce 18 51 69 

Faculty of 
Applied 
Science 

Physical Science 
1st Year 2016/2017 

59 44 103 

Biological Science 37 100 137 

Physical Science 
2nd Year 2015/2016 

68 33 101   

Biological Science 22 73 95 

Physical Science 
3rd Year 2014/2015 

58 34 92 

Biological Science 22 61 83 

Physical Science 
4th Year 2013/2014 

7 8 15 

Biological Science 5 5 10 

Faculty of 
Engineering 

B.Sc. Engineering 1st Year 2017/2018 70 10 80 

B.Sc. Engineering 1st Year 2016/2017 72 16 88 

B.Sc. Engineering 2nd Year 2015/2016 76 21 97 

B.Sc. Engineering 3rd Year 2014/2015 80 12 92 

B.Sc. Engineering 4th Year 2013/2014 71 21 92 

B.Sc. Engineering Final Year 2012/2013 83 18 101 

Faculty of 
Technology 

 
 

Bio systems 
Technology 1st Year 2016/2017 

15 66 81 

ICT 53 16 69 

Bio systems 
Technology 2nd Year 2015/2016 

14 69 83 

ICT 59 16 75 
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Tab le 3.3:   Enrolment (Total No. of Students) in External Undergraduate Degree 
Fee Levying Programs 

Programme of study Year of study 

Student Enrolment(total no. of 
registered students)  
(as at 31st December2018) 

Male Female Total 

Bachelor of Arts 1st, 2nd& 3rd year 3,545 3,844 7,389 

Bachelor of Business 
Administration 

1st, 2nd& 3rd year 2,363 1023 3,386 

Bachelor of Commerce 1st, 2nd& 3rd year 327 293 620 

  

Table 3.4:  Local Students New Entrants and Enrolment (Total No .of Students) in 
Postgraduate Degree Programs 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name 
of the 
Faculty 

Programme of 
Study 

Full 
Time/ 
Part 

Time 

New Entrants (January 
– December 2018) 

Student Enrolment 
(total no. of registered 
students)(as at 31st 
December 2018) 

Male Female Total Male Female Total 

A
rt

s 
a

n
d

 C
u

lt
u

re
 

Postgraduate Diploma (PG.Dip ….) 

Pg Dip in Tamil 
Part 
Time 

- -  04 01 05 

Master‟s Degree (MSc, MA, MBA, …..) 

 MA in Tamil  
Part 
Time 

- -  07 04 11 

MPhil 

Mphil in Tamil   
Part 
Time 

03 03 06 36 08 44 

Grand Total   03 03 06 47 13 60 

M
a

n
ag

em
en

t 
 

a
n

d
  

C
o

m
m

er
ce

 

Postgraduate Diploma (PG.Dip ….) 

PG Dip in 

Management  
Full 
Time 

00 00 00 08 01 09 

Master‟s Degree  

Master of 
Business 
Administration 

 Full 
Time 

27 10 37 223 49 272 

Grand Total   27 10  37 231 50  
281
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4. Details of Foreign Students 

Table 4.1:  Foreign Students (students selected under foreign category) New 
Entrants to Undergraduate Degree Programs 

Faculty 
Programme of 
study 

Year of 
Intake 

Country 
No. of students 
registered 

Faculty of Management 
and Commerce 

Management 2016/2017 Swaziland 1 

 

 Table 4.2:  Foreign Students (students selected under foreign category) Enrolment 
(Total No. of Students) in Undergraduate Degree Programs 

Faculty 
Program
me of 
study 

Year of 
study 

Country 
Year of 
Intake 

Student 
Enrolment(total no. of 
registered students) 

Male Female Total 

Faculty of 
Applied 
Science 

Biological 
Science 

3rd 
Year 

Nigeria 2014/2015 1 0 1 

4th 
Year 

Bangladesh 2013/2014 0 1 1 

Faculty of 
Manageme
nt and 
Commerce 

Managem
ent 

1st 
Year 

Swaziland 2016/2017 1 0 1 
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5. Graduate Output 
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Table 5.2: Undergraduate Output: External 

Program of study 
General
/ Special 

No. Graduated 

Male Female Total 

Bachelor of Arts General 02 01 03 

Bachelor of Business Administration General 01 - 01 

Total 03 01 04 

 

Table 5.3: Postgraduate Output (From January - December 2018) 

Faculty Name of the Programme of Study 
No. Graduated 

Male Total 

Management & 
Commerce 

Master of Business Administration 15 15 

Total 15 15 
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6. Academic Staff 
 

Table 6.1: Details of Academic Staff Including Library Staff as at 31st December 2018 
 

SP-Senior Professor     P- Professor   AP- Associate Professor  SL1- Senior Lecturer Gr –I    
SL2-Senior Lecturer Gr –II           L- Lecture/Lecturer (Prob) LB-Librarian  SALB1- Senior Assistant Librarian Gr-
I    SALB2- Senior Assistant Librarian- Gr-II     ALB –Assistant Librarian 
AL- Assistant Lecturer 
 

 
Faculty 

 
 
Department/ 
Division/ 
Unit 

Designation 

S
P

 

P
 

A
P

 

S
L

1
 

S
L

2
 

L
 

S
L

1
/ 

S
L

2
/L

 

(T
e
m

p
/ 

A
ss

ig
n

m
e
n

t)
 

S
L

1
/ 

S
L

2
/L

 

(V
is

it
in

g
) 

L
B

 

S
A

L
B

1
 

S
A

L
B

2
 

A
L

B
 

A
L

 (
T

e
m

p
.)

 

D
e
m

o
n

st
ra

to
rs

/ 
T

u
to

rs
 

/I
n

st
ru

ct
o

rs
 

(T
e
m

p
.)

 

Vice Chancellor 1  

A
rt

s 
&

 C
u

lt
u

re
 

Dept. of Political 
Sciences 

    2 1 

 5 

 

22                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

Dept. of Languages  1  4 1 3 

Dept. of Geography   1 2 1 1 

Dept. of Social Sciences    4 1  

Dept. of Sociology    1 2 1 

Dept. of  Economics 
and Statistics 

   2   

Computer Unit      1 

Dept. of English 
Language Teaching  

   1 1 2 

Is
la

m
ic

 

S
tu

d
ie

s 
&

 

A
ra

b
ic

 

L
a

n
g

u
a

g
e

 Dept. of Islamic 
Studies 

   2 3 6 

 4 11  
Dept. of Arabic 
Languages 

  1 2 4 7 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n

t 
&

  

C
o

m
m

e
rc

e
 

Dept. of Accounting & 
Finance 

 1  5 3 2 

  5  Dept. of Management  2  10 2 2 

Dept. of MIT    1 2 2 

A
p

p
li

e
d

 

S
ci

e
n

ce
s 

Dept. of Mathematical 
Sciences 

   4 3 7 

 4 5 18 
Dept. of Physical 
Sciences 

   4 1 4 

Dept. of Biological 
Sciences 

    3 1 4 

E
n

g
in

e
e
ri

n
g

 

Dept. of Civil 
Engineering 

   2 2 4 

 25 8 6 

Dept. of Mechanical 
Engineering 

   2  4 

Dept. of Electrical & 
Telecommunication 
Engineering 

     7 

Dept. of Computer 
Science & Engineering 

     2 

Dept. of 
Interdisciplinary 
Studies 

     1 

T
e
ch

n

o
lo

g
y

 Dept. of BioSystems 
Technology 

    3 2 
 4 2 8 

Dept. of ICT     2 2 

Library  1 2 1 2  

Total 1 4 2 49 34 65  42 1 2 1 2 53 32 
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Table 6.2: Details of Academic Supportive Staff  

 

Table 6.3: Details of Approved Cadre and Present Staff -All Academic Staff 
 

Faculty of Arts and Culture 

Staff category 

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
  

C
a

d
re

 

Existing Staff 

P
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

C
a

d
re

 

V
a

ca
n

ci
e

s 

A
ct

u
a

l 

C
a

d
re

 

V
a

ca
n

ci
e

s 

P
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

T
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 

V
is

it
in

g
 

A
ss

ig
n

m
e

n
t 

[1]-[2] 
[1] – 

([2]+[3]+ 
[4]+[5]) [1] [2] [3] [4] [5] 

P
ro

fe
s

so
r 

C
h

ai
r 

Senior 
Professor 5 

    
5 5 

Professor     

Senior Professor 

53 

  

5 

 

20 15 

Professor 1 
  

Associate Professor 1 
  

Senior Lecturer Gr.I 14 
  

Senior Lecturer Gr.II 8 
  

Lecturer 2 
 

 

Lecturer (Prob.) 7 
 

 

Temporary Lecturer / 
Temp. Asst. Lecturer 

19  22 
 

 -3 -3 

Temporary Instructor 0   
 

 
  

Temporary Tutor 0   
 

 
  

Total 77 33 22 5  22 17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Faculty/ Department/ 
Division/Unit 

Designation 
Academic 
Support Staff 

Career Guidance Unit Career Guidance Counselor 1 

Faculty of Arts & Culture Instructors 3 

Faculty of Management & 
Commerce 

Instructors 3 

Faculty of Applied Sciences 

Instructor in Computer 1 

Educational Assistant 1 

System Analyst 1 

Physical Education Unit 
Instructor in Physical 
Education 

3 

Information and Statistics 
Unit 

Assistant Statistician 1 

Network Operations Centre Assistant Network Manager 1 

Total 15 
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Faculty of Management and Commerce 

Staff category 

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
  

C
a

d
re

 

Existing Staff 

P
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

C
a

d
re

 

V
a

ca
n

ci
e

s 

A
ct

u
a

l 

C
a

d
re

 

V
a

ca
n

ci
e

s 

P
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

T
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 

[1]-[2] [1] – (2]+[3]) 
[1] [2] [3] 

Professor 
Chair 

Senior 
Professor 3 

  
3 3 

Professor   

Senior Professor 

38 

   
 

6 

 

6 

Professor 3 
 

Associate Professor   

Senior Lecturer Gr.I 16 
 

Senior Lecturer Gr.II 7 
 

Lecturer 1 
 

Lecturer (Prob.) 5 
 

Temporary Lecturer / 
Temp. Asst. Lecturer 

8  5 3 3 

Total 49 32 5 12 12 

Faculty of Islamic Studies and Arabic Language 

Staff category 

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
  

C
a

d
re

 

Existing Staff 

P
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

C
a

d
re

 

V
a

ca
n

ci
e

s 

A
ct

u
a

l 
C

ad
re

 

V
a

ca
n

ci
e

s 

P
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

T
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 

V
is

it
in

g
 

[1] [2] [3] [4] [1]-[2] 
[1]-

([2]+[3]+[4]) 

Professor 
Chair 

Senior 
Professor 2 

   
2 2 

Professor    

Senior Professor 

29 

  

4 
 

4 0 

Professor   

Associate Professor 1  

Senior Lecturer Gr.I 4  

Senior Lecturer Gr.II 7  

Lecturer 1  

Lecturer (Prob.) 12  

Temporary Lecturer /  
Temp. Asst. Lecturer 

11  11  
  

Total 42 25 11 4 6 2 
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Faculty of Applied Sciences 

Staff category 

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 

C
a

d
re

 

Existing Staff 

P
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

C
a

d
re

 

V
a

ca
n

ci
e

s 

A
ct

u
a

l 
C

ad
re

 

V
a

ca
n

ci
e

s 

P
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

T
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 

V
is

it
in

g
 

A
ss

ig
n

m
e

n
t 

[1] [2] [3] [4] [5] [1]-[2] 
[1]-([2]+[3] 
+[4]+[5]) 

Professo
r Chair 

Senior Professor 
3 

      
3 3 

Professor       

Senior Professor 

43 

   

4 

  

12 7 

Professor      

Associate Professor      

Senior Lecturer Gr.I 11     

Senior Lecturer Gr.II 5   
 

Lecturer 2   
 

Lecturer (Prob.) 13     

Temporary Lecturer / 
Temp. Asst. Lecturer 

6  5     1 1 

Temporary Demonstrator 25  14     11 11 

Temporary Tutor 0  4     -4 -4 

Total 77 31 23 4 1 23 18 

 

 

Faculty of Engineering 

Staff category 

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
  

C
a

d
re

 

Existing Staff 

P
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

C
a

d
re

 

V
a

ca
n

ci
e

s 

A
ct

u
a

l 
C

ad
re

 

V
a

ca
n

ci
e

s 

P
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

T
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 

C
o

n
tr

a
ct

 

V
is

it
in

g
 

A
ss

ig
n

m
e

n
t 

[1] [2] [3] [4] [5] [6] [1]-[2] 
[1]-([2]+ [3] 
+ [4]+ [5]) 

Professor 
Chair 

Senior Professor 
3 

     
3 3 

Professor      

Senior Professor 

46 

 

 

 

25 

 

22 
 -6 

Professor    

Associate Professor    

Senior Lecturer Gr.I 4 1 
 

Senior Lecturer Gr.II 2 2 
 

Lecturer   
 

Lecturer (Prob.) 18    

Temporary Lecturer/ 
Temp.Asst.Lecturer 

17  8 
 

  9 9 

Temp. Research Assistant 1       1 1 

Temporary Demonstrator 6       6 6 

Temporary Instructor 18  6     12 12 

Total 91 24 14 3 25 
 

53 25 
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Table 6.4: Details of Approved Cadre and Present Staff as at 31st December, 2018 – 
Library Staff and Academic Support Staff 

Library Staff 

Salary Scale  

Approved 
Cadre  

Existing Staff Permanent 
Cadre 
Vacancies  

Actual 
Cadre  
Vacancies  

Permane
nt  

Temp
orary 

Contr
act 

[1] [2] [3] [4] [1] – [2] [1] – [2] 

U-AC 5 1 1   

1 1 U-AC 4 1    

U-AC 3 to U-AC 5 5 5   

Total 7 6   1 1 
   

Academic Supportive Staff 

U-AS 2 22 3   
21 12 

U-AS 1 14 12 2 7 

Total 36 15 2 7 21 12 

 
 Table 6.5: Details of Approved Cadre and Present Staff as at 31st December, 2018 – 
Academic Administrative Grades 

Faculty of  Technology 

Staff category 

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
  

C
a

d
re

 

Existing Staff 

Permanent 
Cadre 
Vacancies 

Actual Cadre 
Vacancies 

P
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

T
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 

V
is

it
in

g
 

[1] [2] [3] [4] [1]-[2] [1]–([2]+[3] +[4]) 

Senior Professor 

20 

 

  4 
11 

7 

Professor 

Associate Professor 

Senior Lecturer Gr.I 

Senior Lecturer Gr.II 5 

Lecturer 1 

Lecturer (Prob.) 3 

Temporary Lecturer / 
Temp. Asst. Lect  

 2   -2 -2 

Temporary Demonstrator 8    8   
  

Total 28 9 10 4 9 5 

Salary Scale  

Approved 
Cadre  

Existing Staff  Permanent 
Cadre 
Vacancies  

Actual Cadre 
Vacancies  Permanent  

[1]   [2] [1] – [2] (1) – [2] 

Academic Administrative Grades  

Deans  

Allowance 6 6 0 0 

Directors  

Allowance 3 3 0 0 

Total 9 9 0 0 
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7. Details of Non-Academic Staff 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Salary 
Scale  

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 

C
a

d
re

  

Existing Staff  
Permanent 
Cadre Vacancies  

Actual 
Cadre 
Vacancies  

P
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

 

C
o

n
tr

a
ct

  

A
ss

ig
n

m
e

n
t 

 

(1) - (2) 
(1) – [(2)+ 
(3)+ (4)] 

(1)  (2)  (3) (4) 

Non Academic  Non Administrative Grades 

Technical Staff  

U-MN 4 
 

3 
 

 

46 46 
U-MN 3 13  

 
 

U-MN 2 
 

2 
 

 

U-MT 1 60 22 4  

Clerical & Allied Staff 

U-MN 4 0 25 
 

 

32 32 
U-MN 3 13 10 

 
4 

U-MN 2 5 2 
 

 

U-MN 1 146 95 
  

Primary Staff 

U-PL 3 50 61 
 

 

50 50 U-PL 2 47 36 
 

 

U-PL 1 178 128 
 

3 

Total 512 384 4 7 128 128 

Salary 
Scale  

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 

 C
a

d
re

  

Existing Staff  Permanent 
Cadre 
Vacancies  

Actual 
Cadre 
Vacancies  

P
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

 

V
is

it
in

g
  

C
o

n
tr

a
ct

 

A
ss

ig
n

m
e

n
t 

 

(1) - (2) 
(1) – [(2)- 
(3)- (4)] 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) 

Administrative Grades 

Administrative Staff & Financial Staff  

U-EX 3 2 2 
 

 
 

2 2 U-EX 2 10 12 
 

2 
 

U-EX 1 17 13 
 

 
 

Other Executive Staff  

U-EX 2 6 4 
 

  5 5 

U-EX 1 4 1 
 

  
  

Medical Officers 

U-MO 2 1     
2 -3 

U-MO 1 1  5  
 

Total 41 32 5 2  9 4 
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8. The Employability of Graduands in 2018 

Information regarding the employability is collected prior to every convocation 

by issuing questionnaire to the graduands. As such, the survey results obtained 

from the “Employability Survey - 2018” regarding their employability is given 

below. 

Table 8.1: Frequency distribution of respondents by Faculty 

Faculty 
Number 
Graduated 

Questionnaires 
Received 

Response 
Rate (%) 

Arts and Culture 237 225 94.94 

Management and 
Commerce 

254 233 91.73 

Applied Sciences 82 78 95.12 

Islamic Studies and 
Arabic Language 

289 250 86.51 

Engineering 84 71 84.52 

All 946 857 90.59 

 

Table 8.2: Overall Employment Status 

Employment Status Precent 

Employed 46.93 

Under employed 6.51 

Other 4.42 

Unemployed 42.14 

 
Figure 8.1: Overall Employment Status of Graduands in 2018 

Unemployed 
42.14% 

Other 
4.42% Employed 

46.93% 

Under 
employed 

6.51% 

53.44% 
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Table 8.3: Employment Status by Faculty 

Employment 
Status 

Faculty 
Overall 

FAC FAS FE FMC FIA 

Employed 40.76% 58.67% 81.54% 56.89% 29.83% 46.93% 

Under employed 2.37% 14.67% 9.23% 8.89% 4.62% 6.51% 

Other 8.53% 9.33%   4.62% 4.42% 

Unemployed 48.34% 17.33% 9.23% 34.22% 60.92% 42.14% 
 

Table 8.4: Distribution of Employment by Economic Sector 

Economic Sector Percentage 

Construction/Engineering 16.18% 

Education 41.18% 

Health Care 4.12% 

Hotels/Travels/Tourism 2.06% 

IT 6.76% 

Manufacturing 9.71% 

Telecommunication 1.18% 

Bank Finance/ Insurance 9.12% 

Agriculture/Dairy 2.94% 

Other 5.88% 

 

Table 8.5: Distribution of Employment by Economic Sector and by Faculty 

Economic Sector FAC FMC FAS FIA FE 

Construction/Engineering 3.17% 7.02% 11.11%  81.25% 

Education 74.60% 20.18% 55.56% 55.74% 12.50% 

Health Care 7.94% 2.63% 3.70% 6.56%  

Hotels/Travels/Tourism 1.59% 3.51%  3.28%  

IT 6.35% 14.04% 3.70% 1.64%  

Manufacturing 1.59% 15.79% 14.81% 8.20% 2.08% 

Power and Energy 
 

0.88%   4.17% 

Telecommunication 1.59% 0.88% 1.85% 1.64%  

Bank Finance/ Insurance  21.93% 7.41% 3.28%  

Agriculture/Dairy  1.75% 1.85% 11.48%  

Other 3.17% 11.40% 
 

8.20%  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

42 Annual Report 2018|South Eastern University of Sri Lanka 

9. Details of Research, Innovation and Publications  

Publication Category 
FAC FMC FAS FIA FE FT Library 

L F L F L F L F L F L F L F 

No. of Full Papers 
published in indexed 
Journals including e-
journals 

- 12 - 13 - 13 - 05 01 04 - - - - 

No. of Full Papers 
published in refreed non-
indexed Journals including 
e-journals 

06 07 05 01 - 02 07 - - - - - - - 

No. of conference Papers 
published as full papers in 
Conference Proceedings 

17 04 01 03 20 - 32 - 04 - 04 - 3 - 

No. of Abstract 
Publications 

23 - 25 - 25 - 04 - 02 - 03 - - - 

No. of Book Chapters 
published 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

No. of 
Books 

By a 
publisher 

- - - - - - 02 - - - - - - - 

By the 
Author 

04 - - - - - - - - - 01 - - - 

 

L-Published Local    F-Published Foreign  

The details of the above research, Journal, books and article which were done 
by academic staff members are given below. 

 

FACULTY OF ARTS AND CULTURE  

Publications in Refereed Indexed 

Journal 

Nijamir, K., Kaleel, M.I.M., (2018), 

“Coastal morphodynamics associated 

natural hazards: a case study of Oluvil 

area in Ampara district, Sri Lanka”, 

World Scientific News, volume-97, pages-

113-124. 

Kaleel, M.I.M., (2018),”Rainfall 

Variability of South-West Monsoon: A 

Special Study Based on Ratnapura 

District,Sri Lanka”, World News of 

Natural Sciences, Volume-18,issue-2,pages-

195-202. 

Kaleel, M.I.M., (2018),”Challenges of 

population growth on agricultural land 

in South Eastern coastal areas of 

Ampara District in Sri Lanka”, 

Sustainable Food Production,volume-1,pages-

30-36. 

 

 

Mathanraj, S., & Kaleel, M.I.M., (2018),” 

GIS Based Flooding Analysis 

Kaluwanchikudy DS Division” World 

News of Natural Sciences, volume18, issue-2, 

pages-114-123. 

Rameez, A. & Fowsar, M.A.M., 

(2018),”An Empirical Survey on Factors 

Affecting Citizens‟ Trust in Public 

Institutions in the Eastern Province of 

Sri Lanka”, Journal of Politics and 

Law,Volume-11,No-2,Pages-88-

100,Canadian Center of Science and 

Education. 

Rameez, A., (2018),”Sociology of Sri 

Lankan Muslims: Dealing with 

Different Dimensions of Muslim 

Society”, Journal of Engineering and 

Applied Sciences (SCOPUS), Volume-13, 

issue-07, Pages-1782-1793,Medwell Journals. 

Rameez, A., (2018),”Political 

Participation of Women in Local 

Governance: A Case Study of Selected 

Local Government Bodies in Eastern Sri 

Lanka”, Journal of African and Asian 

http://yadda.icm.edu.pl/yadda/element/bwmeta1.element.psjd-f043b45b-146d-4bdd-a2c1-831b265dff2d
http://yadda.icm.edu.pl/yadda/element/bwmeta1.element.psjd-f043b45b-146d-4bdd-a2c1-831b265dff2d
http://yadda.icm.edu.pl/yadda/element/bwmeta1.element.psjd-f043b45b-146d-4bdd-a2c1-831b265dff2d
http://yadda.icm.edu.pl/yadda/element/bwmeta1.element.psjd-b5618087-77ca-4d58-adea-b6c99e97347a
http://yadda.icm.edu.pl/yadda/element/bwmeta1.element.psjd-b5618087-77ca-4d58-adea-b6c99e97347a
http://yadda.icm.edu.pl/yadda/element/bwmeta1.element.psjd-b5618087-77ca-4d58-adea-b6c99e97347a
http://yadda.icm.edu.pl/yadda/element/bwmeta1.element.psjd-b5618087-77ca-4d58-adea-b6c99e97347a
https://www.researchgate.net/profile/Mohammed_Ibrahim_Kaleel/publication/323628226_Challenges_of_Population_Growth_on_Agricultural_Land_in_South_Eastern_Coastal_Areas_of_Ampara_District_in_Sri_Lanka/links/5aa0d6b6a6fdcc22e2cffdb7/Challenges-of-Population-Growth-on-Agricultural-Land-in-South-Eastern-Coastal-Areas-of-Ampara-District-in-Sri-Lanka.pdf
https://www.researchgate.net/profile/Mohammed_Ibrahim_Kaleel/publication/323628226_Challenges_of_Population_Growth_on_Agricultural_Land_in_South_Eastern_Coastal_Areas_of_Ampara_District_in_Sri_Lanka/links/5aa0d6b6a6fdcc22e2cffdb7/Challenges-of-Population-Growth-on-Agricultural-Land-in-South-Eastern-Coastal-Areas-of-Ampara-District-in-Sri-Lanka.pdf
https://www.researchgate.net/profile/Mohammed_Ibrahim_Kaleel/publication/323628226_Challenges_of_Population_Growth_on_Agricultural_Land_in_South_Eastern_Coastal_Areas_of_Ampara_District_in_Sri_Lanka/links/5aa0d6b6a6fdcc22e2cffdb7/Challenges-of-Population-Growth-on-Agricultural-Land-in-South-Eastern-Coastal-Areas-of-Ampara-District-in-Sri-Lanka.pdf
https://www.researchgate.net/profile/Mohammed_Ibrahim_Kaleel/publication/323628226_Challenges_of_Population_Growth_on_Agricultural_Land_in_South_Eastern_Coastal_Areas_of_Ampara_District_in_Sri_Lanka/links/5aa0d6b6a6fdcc22e2cffdb7/Challenges-of-Population-Growth-on-Agricultural-Land-in-South-Eastern-Coastal-Areas-of-Ampara-District-in-Sri-Lanka.pdf
http://psjd.icm.edu.pl/psjd/session.action?userAction=property&parameterName=common%2Flang&parameterValue=en&currentUrl=%2Fpsjd%2Felement%2Fbwmeta1.element.psjd-ab142821-e8d6-4f13-8ca4-8f939577ee5b&currentApplicationPath=%2Felement%2Fbwmeta1.element.psjd-ab142821-e8d6-4f13-8ca4-8f939577ee5b&selectResultsNumber=20
http://psjd.icm.edu.pl/psjd/session.action?userAction=property&parameterName=common%2Flang&parameterValue=en&currentUrl=%2Fpsjd%2Felement%2Fbwmeta1.element.psjd-ab142821-e8d6-4f13-8ca4-8f939577ee5b&currentApplicationPath=%2Felement%2Fbwmeta1.element.psjd-ab142821-e8d6-4f13-8ca4-8f939577ee5b&selectResultsNumber=20
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Studies (JAAS), Volume -01, Pages-01-19, 

JAAS. 

Rameez, A., Fowsar, M.A.M., 

(2018),”Citizen‟s Trust in Public 

Institutions: Case Study in Eastern Sri 

Lanka”, Journal of Politics and Law, 

Volume-11, No-2, Pages-88-100, Canadian 

Center of Science and Education. 

Rameez, A., (2018),”Resurgence of 

Ethno-Religious Sentiment against 

muslims in Sri lanka: Recent Anti-

Muslim Violence in Kandy and 

Ampara”, Journal of Politics and Law (Web 

of Science), Volume -11, No-04, Pages-27-39. 

Rameez, A., (2018),”Eurocentrism and 

the Contribution of Ibn Khaldun to the 

Growth of Sociology”, Journal of 

Sustainable Development, (Web of Science), 

Volume-11, No-06,Pages-41-46. 

Ahamed Lebbe, S.M., (2018),”Economic 

Cost of Diabetes in Ampara District in 

Sri Lanka”, Journal of Politics and Law, 

volume-11,issue-04,pages- 146-152.  

M.H.M. Rinos, A.L. Mohamed Rifky, and 

A.B.M. Jesfar, (2018),” Study on the 

Feasibility of Chickpea Cultivation in 

Ampara Area in Sri Lanka, International 

Journal of Academic and Applied Research 

(IJAAR) ISSN: 2000-005X Vol. 2 Issue 3, 

March – 2018, Pages: 1-4. 

Publications in refereed Non Indexed 

Journal 

Rameez, A., (2018),”Caste and Islamic 

Revivalist Movements:A Case Study of 

Eastern Muslims in Sri Lanka”, 

International Journal of Islamic 

Thought,Volume-13,issue-01,pages-1-

14.National University of Malaysia. 

Rameez, A., (2018),”Orientalism and 

(Islamic) Terrorism: Pre and Post Era of 

the 9/11 Attack on the U,S,” Sri Lankan 

Journal of Arabic and Islamic 

Studies,Volume-01,Issue-01,Pages-61-

72,FIA,SEUSL. 

Saadhiya, M.A.S.F., (2018),”,];yhkpa 
jkpo; ,yf;fpaj;jpy; etPd ,yf;fpaj;jpd; 

,lk;”,Kalam journal, FAC,SEUSL. 

Mahir, I.L.M., & Gnanakumaran, N., 

(2018),”,Uik thjj;ij epuhfupf;Fk; 
cstpay;rhu; elj;ijthjk; : xU 

tpku;rdg;ghu;it”,Journal of classical Tamil, 

Raja publication, tamizh nadu, India. 

Mahir, I.L.M., & Gnanakumaran, N., 

(2018),”kdk; -rlk; njhlu;ghd gpur;rpidj; 
jPu;tpy; egu; gw;wpa vz;zf;fU : xU 

gFg;gha;T”, Journal of classical Tamil, Raja 

publication, tamizh nadu, India. 

Fazil, M.M., (2018),”fpof;fpyq;ifapy; 
Aj;jj;jpw;F gpe;jpa MAjf;fisT> 
FOf;fisf; fisj;jy; kw;Wk; kPs; 
xUq;fpizg;Gr; nrad;Kiw> 
Nfhwisg;gw;W njw;F gpuNjr nrayhsu; 

gpupT Fwpj;j tpla Ma;T”,Journal of 

Modern Tamizh Research.Trichy,India 

Fazil, M.M., (2018),” rptpy; Aj;jj;jpw;Fg; 
gpd;duhd ,yq;ifapy; murpay; jPHT 
Kaw;rpfs;: vjpHghHg;Gf;fs;> 

Kd;DzHTfs; kw;Wk; Vkhw;wq;fs;”, 

Journal of Classical Thamizh (Quarterly 

International Multileteral Thamizh Journal), 

Volume-6, issue-4 ,pages- 775-781,publisher- 

Rajah Publishers, Thiruchi: India 

Fowsar, M.A.M., (2018), “Recent Anti-

Muslim Assaults In Sri Lanka: Facts and 

Falsehoods”, Journal Eurasia Review. 

Mahir, ILM, & Fathima Nafla, K.L., 

(2018),” fy;tp nka;apaypy; N[hd; ^ap 

,d; mDgtf;fw;wy; Kiwik”, Journal of 

Modern Tamil Research, Volume 6, Issue 4, 

Pages 885-890, Publisher Raja Publication, 

India. 

Mahir, ILM, & Fathima Nafla, K.L., 

(2018). ஜனீ் பி஬ாஜஜ஬ின் அமிகை லிருத்திக் 

https://heinonline.org/hol-cgi-bin/get_pdf.cgi?handle=hein.journals/jpola11&section=61
https://heinonline.org/hol-cgi-bin/get_pdf.cgi?handle=hein.journals/jpola11&section=61
https://heinonline.org/hol-cgi-bin/get_pdf.cgi?handle=hein.journals/jpola11&section=61
javascript:void(0)
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ஜைாட்பாடும் அதன் பி஭ஜ஬ாைப் ப஬ன்பாடும், 

Journal of Social Review 5 (1), 48-53, 

FAC,SEUSL. 

Issadeen, ML., & Fathima Nafla, K.L., 

(2018),”kdpj Rje;jpuk; gw;wpa rhj;Nj 
kw;Wk; G+f;Nfhtpd; fUj;Jf;fs; xU 

gFg;gha;T”, Journal of Social Review 5 (1), 

96-100, FAC,SEUSL. 

Riyal, A.L.M., (2018),” FLk;g mikg;Gk; 

gpur;rpidfs; Njhd;Wk; R+oYk;”, Journal of 

Social Review 4 (1), 

Riyal, A.L.M., (2018),”rpWtu; 

cupikfs;:gd;Kfg; ghu;it” , Journal of 

Modern tamizh, issue- 19, 

 

Full papers published in Conference 

Proceedings 

Selvakumari, S., (2018).”,e;J - ,];yhk; 
kjq;fSf;fpilapyhd rkurg; Nghf;F: 
nkhfyha kd;du;fsJ Ml;rpf; fhyg; 

gFjpia ikakhff; nfhz;l Xu; Ma;T”, 

5th International Symposium, FIA,SEUSL. 

Riyal, A.L.M., & Nafla, K.L.F., 

(2018),”K];ypk; nka;apaypy; xU 

xOf;ftpay;“, 5th International Symposium, 

FIA,SEUSL. 

Fathima Rifna S.L., & Ahamed Lebbe, 

S.M., (2018), “An Analysis of consumer 

behaviour on purchang cosmetic 

products: A case study on 

Kalmunaikudy”, 8th International 

Symposium, SEUSL. 

Fathima Jumaila, J., &  Ahamed lebbe, 

S.M.,  (2018),”new;r;nra;ifj; Jiwapy; 
ePh;g;ghrdg; gw;whf;Fiwapd;jhf;fk;: fs 
Ma;T> rk;khe;Jiwg; gpuNjr nrayfg; 

gpupT”, 8th International Symposium, SEUSL. 

Kaneserajah, K., (2018), ”gpNsl;Nlhtpd; 
fy;tpr; rpe;jidf;Fk; &Nrhtpd; 

rpe;jidf;Fkpilapyhd XH xg;gPl;lha;T”, 

8th International Symposium, SEUSL. 

Subaraj, N., (2018), ”,e;Jr; rpe;jid 

kugpy; kf;];Ky;yH (Max Mullar)- XH 

FtpTg; ghHit”, 8th International 

Symposium, SEUSL. 

Navaz, A.M.M., & Sahna Banu, M.A., 

(2018),”Speaking anxiety: A pilot study 

among the Es1 undergraduates at the 

south Eastern University of Sri Lanka”, 

8th International Symposium, SEUSL. 

Riyal, A.L.M.,  Nafla, K.L.F.,  Jusla, 

A.J.F.S.,  & Riska, A.F., (2018),”Fw;wKk; 
jz;lidAk; - xU nka;apay; 

gFg;gha;T”, 8th International Symposium, 

SEUSL. 

Riyal, A.L.M.,  (2018)>”gpugQ;rf; 
Nfhl;ghl;bd; gd;Kfj; jd;ik: nka;apay; 

Ma;T”> 8th International Symposium, 

SEUSL. 

Rismina, M.R.F.,   & Ahamed Lebbe, 

S.M., (2018),”Economic cost of open 

waste dump site: With special reference 

to gahagoda dump in Kandy District”, 

8th International Symposium, SEUSL. 

Azeeka, H.H.  & Nufile, A.A.M. (2018), 

“Factors influence on employee 

turnover in private sector banks; Special 

reference to chilaw division”, 8th 

International Symposium, SEUSL. 

Ragupuran, K., (2018),”KUfdpd; 

thfdq;fSk; nfhbAk ;”, International 

Conference.,e;J rka fyhrhu mYty;fs; 

jpizf;fsk;. ,yq;if. Thirumurugan 

thiruvakkath Tiruppadan, Malaysia 

Ragupuran, K., (2018),”jkpo;r; #oypy; 

Ehyhf;f kuG”, %d;whtJ ru;tNjr 
Muha;r;rp khehL>Rthkp tpGyhee;ju; 
mofpaw; fw;iffs; epWtfk;>, 

kl;lf;fsg;G, 

Kaneesaraja, K., (2018),”Source of 

knowledge-western and Indian 

javascript:void(0)
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philosophical views”, Instym-2018, FAC, 

SEUSL. 

Riyal, A.L.M., (2018),”Theory of 

universe: A philosophical study”, 8th 

International Symposmiu SEUSL.,  

Subaraj, N., (2018),”jpUthrfj;jpy; gR 

gw;wpa rpe;jidfs;”, International 

symposium, Thirukkural conference, 

Kaanchipuram college, Tamil Nadu, 

Shalabi, M.M., Sameem, MAM. & 

Ashwaq Naif Almuqati, (2018), 

”Reflective Teaching as a Practical 

approach,  ”Academic Costing & Event 

Management Solution. 

Riswan, M., (2018). “CBO Managed 

Water Supply in Mitigating Rural Water 

Poverty in the Selected Coastal Villages 

of Akkaraipattu Region, Sri Lanka”, 

International Conference on Budding Trends 

in Multidisciplinary Research - 2018. 

Organized by the EAST (Environmental 

Advisory for Sustainable Trust), Tirunelveli, 

and Department of Education, Mother Teresa 

Women's University, Kodaikanal, India. 

Riswan, M., (2018). “Epidemic of 

Dengue and Preventive Measures: A 

Study Based in the Kalmunai RDHS 

Area, Sri Lanka”, International Conference 

on Budding Trends in Multidisciplinary 

Research - 2018. Organized by the EAST 

(Environmental Advisory for Sustainable 

Trust), Tirunelveli, and Department of 

Education, Mother Teresa Women's 

University, Kodaikanal, India. 

Riswan, M., & Wazeema, T.M.F., 

(2018),”Gender Equality and 

Vulnerabilities of Women in the Rural 

Economy”, International Symposium on 

Gender Equity and Equality (ISGEE 

2017),Pages-62-69,Eastern University, Sri 

Lanka. 

Fowsar, M.A.M., “Changing Dynamics 

of Minority Politics in Post-war Sri 

Lanka; A Case study of Muslim 

Politics:, 22nd International Conference and 

International Seminar, University of Jaffna. 

 

Papers published as Abstracts in 

Conference Proceedings 

Dhivyaa S.D.M.R. & Riswan M., (2018),” 

Resettlement and its challenges 

Confronting Normal Life: A Study of 

Keppapilavu people resettled in 

Seeniyamoddai Model Village”, 6th 

SEUARS-2017, FAC, SEUSL. 

Fathima Rinosha K. & Ahemed Lebbe 

S.M., (2018),” Direct Cost of Diabetes: A 

Case Study in sainthamaruthu 

Divisional Secretariat Area”, 6th  

SEUARS -2017, FAC, SEUSL. 

Linojah S. & Naleefa A.W.N. (2018),”The 

Impact of Grade Five Scholarship 

Examination on Professional 

Qualification and Educational 

Attainment: A sociological Study in 

Koddaikallaru Division”, SEUARS -

2017, FAC, SEUSL. 

Habras, A.H.M., K Nijamir, K., & Kaleel, 

M.I.M., (2018).”The environmental effect 

of solid waste disposing process: a 

study based on Maruthamunai area”, 6th 

SEUARS -2017, FAC, SEUSL. 

Rafeeka S. & Kuraisiya K., (2018) “A Case 

Study of 2.5 MW Bio Energy Power 

Plant‟s Impact in Nintavur” 6th SEUARS 

-2017, FAC, SEUSL. 

Riswan M., Rameez A., & Lumna 

N.,(2018),“Social, Economic and 

Cultural Challenges Confronting 

Gypsies in Aligambai Village, Sri 

Lanka, 6th SEUARS -2017, FAC, SEUSL. 

http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/3186
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/3186
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/3186
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Interaction on Student Motivation in 

South Eastern University of Sri Lanka”, 
7th Annual International Research 
Conference-2018, FMC, SEUSL. 

Maury, R., & Salfiya Ua.Jaleel, (2018), 
”Factors Influencing the Performance of 
Student Nurses in Ampara Nurse 
Training School”, 7th Annual International 
Research Conference-2018, FMC, SEUSL. 

Sabraz Nawaz, S., Abdul Jabbar, 
Mohamed Hasmy, (2018),”Block Chain 
Technology and Its Impact on Financial 

Transactions”, 7th Annual International 
Research Conference-2018, FMC, SEUSL. 

Shiraj, M.M., (2018),”The Impact Of 
Information Technology In Banking 
Sector Between State And Private 
Banks: Special Reference To The South 
Eastern Region, Sri Lanka”, 7th Annual 
International Research Conference-2018, 
FMC, SEUSL. 

Shameem, A.L.M.A., & Sarangan, B., 
(2018),”Impact of Urban Heritage 
Tourism On Tourist Satisfaction In Sri 

Lanka”, 7th Annual International Research 
Conference-2018, FMC, SEUSL. 
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Sulaima Lebbe Subaideen, & Irshad, 
M.B.M., (2018),”Analysis Of Job 
Satisfaction Among The Teachers Of 
Government Schools In Sammanthurai 
Educational Zone In Ampara District”, 
7th Annual International Research 
Conference-2018, FMC, SEUSL. 

Niyas, P.T.M., & Thowfeek Ahamed, S., 
(2018),”Differences of Employee 
Turnover Intention In Terms Of 
Individuals Characteristics: With 
Reference To Operational Level 
Employees In Apparel Industry Of 

Ampara Export Processing Zone”, 7th 
Annual International Research Conference-
2018, FMC, SEUSL. 

Sithy Safeena, M.G.H., (2018),”An 
Empirical Study on Liquidity And 
Profitability Of Listed Companies On 
Colombo Stock Exchange In Sri Lanka”, 
7th Annual International Research 
Conference-2018, FMC, SEUSL. 

Jeevanantham, N., & Sithy Safeena, 
M.G.H.,, (2018),”Impact Of Democtratic 
Leadership Style Of Principal On 
Performance Of Teacher‟s In The Zonal 
Education Batticaloa In Batticaloa 
District”, 7th Annual International Research 
Conference-2018, FMC, SEUSL. 

Murshitha, S.M., & Nuskiya, A.F., 
(2018),”The Impact of Social Media on 
Intercultural Adaptation: A Study 
among the Undergraduates of South 

Eastern University Of Sri Lanka”, 7th 
Annual International Research Conference-
2018, FMC, SEUSL. 

Haleem, A., (2018),”The Effect of AIS on 
Accounting Practices in Erp 

Environment”, 7th Annual International 
Research Conference-2018, FMC, SEUSL. 

Fathima Inshira, M.J., & Jahfer, A., 
(2018),”The Effect of Asset Liability 
Management on the Liquidity Risk of 
Domestic Licensed Commercial Banks 
in Sri Lanka”, 7th Annual International 
Research Conference-2018, FMC, SEUSL. 

Hussain Ali,  M.A.M., Pathum, A.D.A., & 
Silva, M.T.H., (2018),”Non-Financial 
Rewards and Employee Motivation of 

Operational Level Employees”, 7th 
Annual International Research Conference-
2018, FMC, SEUSL. 

Maheepala, M.M.A.S., & Mustafa, 
A.M.M., (2018), ”The Impact of 
Monetary Policy on Economic Growth 
in Sri Lanka”, 7th Annual International 
Research Conference-2018, FMC, SEUSL. 

Shivananthan, S., & Thowfeek, M.H., 
(2018),”An Analysis of Preliminary Bid 
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Industry in Sri Lanka”, 7th Annual 
International Research Conference-2018, 
FMC, SEUSL. 

Hilal, M.I.M., (2018), ”Impact of Market 
Orientation and Innovation Capability 
on Performance of Small Businesses in 
the Eastern Province of Sri Lanka”, 7th 
Annual International Research Conference-
2018, Pages-35, FMC, SEUSL. 

Hilal, M.I.M., (2018), ”The Role Of 
Facebook In Creating E-Wom and 
Purchase Intention in Fmcg Brand 

Marketing In Sri Lanka” Wayamba 
International Conference 2018 (Winc 2018), 
Pages-451. 

Shameem, A.L.M.A., (2018). Consumer 
behaviour and its impacts on green 
banking practices in banking in Sri 
Lanka, Uva Wellassa University of Sri 
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FACULTY OF APPLIED SCIENCES  
 

Publications in refereed Indexed 
Journals 
 
Haroon, M.H., Saima Nazir, Muhammad 
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Sergio A Velastin, (2018).”A Bag of 
Expression Framework for Improved 

Human Action Recognition”, Pattern 
Recognition Letters, North-Holland. 
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Adikaram, A.M.N.M., Amarasooriya 
Pitawala, Hiroaki Ishiga, Daham 
Jayawardana, (2018). “Geochemistry and 
grain size distribution of surface 
sediments of a large semi-enclosed 
lagoon connected to the western Bay of 
Bengal”, Estuarine, Coastal and shelf 
science. 

 
Alibuhtto, M.C., Muhammad Yousuf 
Khan, & Marri,Neelam Qaiyum, 
(2018),”Exploring the Moderating Role 
of Organizational Structure in the 
Relationship between Strategic 
Orientations and Organizational 

Performance”, Asian Journal of 
Multidisciplinary Studies,volume-06,pages-
10. 
 

Alibuhtto, M.C. & Nor Idayu Mahat, 
(2018).”Applications of Partition-Based 
Algorithms for Clustering Dengue 
Patients in Sri Lanka”, International 
Journal, Volume-03, Issue-07. 
 
Jaseetharan, T., Dissanayake, M.A.K.L., 
Senadeera, G.K.R. & Thotawatthage, 
C.A., (2018).”A novel, PbS: Hg quantum 
dot-sensitized, highly efficient solar cell 
structure with triple layered TiO2 
photoanode”, Electrochimica Acta, 
Volume-269, pages-172-179, Pergamon. 
 

Mohamed Mufassirin, M.M., & Hanees, 
A.L., (2018).”Cost Effective Wireless 
Network Based Automated Energy 
Meter Monitoring System for Sri Lanka 

Perspective”, International Journal of 
Information Technology and Computer 
Science (IJITCS), volume-10, issue-05, pages-
68-75, MECS Press. 

 
Manjceevan, J. & Bandara, (2018). 
”Systematic stacking of PbS/CdS/CdSe 
multi-layered quantum dots for the 
enhancement of solar cell efficiency by 
harvesting wide solar spectrum”, 
Electrochemical Acta, volume-271,pages-567-
575, Pergamon. 
 
Komathiraj.K, and Ranjan Shama, 
(2018).”a family of solutions to the 
einstien- maxwell system of equations 

describing relativistic charged fluid 
spheres”, Pramana journal of physics. 
 
Haalisha. A & Jahufer. A, (2018).”Impact 
of consumer price index and gross 
domestic saving on economic growth in 
Sri Lanka: An econometric analysis 
using johansen co-integration 
approach”, international journal of 
innovative research and development, 
volume-07, issue-08, pages-184-191, DOI 
NO-10.24940/ijird/2018/v7/i8/AUG18054. 
 
Ashok Shakya, Ramia Al-Bakain,Haroon 
Haniffa, &  M. Iqbal Choudhary,  (2018). 
”New monoterpenoid by 
biotransformation of thymoquinone 

using Aspergillus niger”, Bioorganic 
Chemistry, Volume 80, October 2018, Pages 
212-215. 
 
Mohamed Cassim Mohamed Zakeel, 
Safeena Mis, & Faiz Marikar, 
(2018).“Biology teachers' beliefs about 
biotechnology and biotechnology 

education in Sri Lanka” The School 
science review 97(360). 
 
kalith, I.M., David Asirvatham, li Khatibi  
& Samantha Thelijjagoda, 
(2018).”Comparison of syllable and 
phoneme modelling of agglutinative 
Tamil isolated words in speech 

recognition”, Current, Journal of Applied 
Science and Technology, ISSN: 2457-1024; 
2231-0843(old), volume-29, 
10.9734/CJAST/2018/40568. 
 
Adikaram, A.M.N.M., Pitawala, 
H.M.T.G.A., & Jayawardana, D.T., 
(2018).”Coastal evolution and sediment 
succession of Sri Lanka: A review on 
quaternary sea levels, climates and 
sedimentation processes”, Journal of 
Geological society of Sri Lanka, volume-19-2, 
(2018),1-16, FAS, SEUSL. 
 
 
Publications in refereed Non-Indexed 
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optimize waiting time of vehicles at 
road arterial networks”, International 
journal of research in engineering and science 
Invention,(IJESI),volume-07,issue-07,pages-
48-58. 
 
Yogeswary raviraj, Daundasekera, 
(2018),”Real time traffic control to 
optimize waiting time of vehicles a road 
intersection”, International journal of 
research in engineering and science, (IJRES), 
volume-06, issue-04, pages-25-33. 

 

Full Papers publishd in Conference 
Proceedings 

 
Roshan, A.M.F., Jahufer, A., (2018).” 
Customer satisfaction and awareness of 
Islamic banking system in Ampara”, 
Faculty of Islamic Studies and Arabic 
Language, South Eastern University of Sri 
Lanka. 

 
Fajila, M.N.F., & Jahan, M.A.C., 
(2018).”The effect of evolutionary 
algorithm in Gene subset selection for 
cancer classification”,Modern Education 
and Computer Science Press. 

 
Akmal Jahan, M.A.C., Kien Nguyen, 
Jasmine Banks, & Vinod Chandran, 
(2018).” Contactless Multiple Finger 
Segments based Identity Verification 
using Information Fusion from Higher 
Order Spectral Invariants”,Conference 
2018 15th IEEE International Conference on 
Advanced Video and Signal Based 
Surveillance (AVSS),pages-1-6, IEEE. 
 
Akmal Jahan, M.A.C., Jasmine Banks, 
Inmaculada Tomeo-Reyes, & Vinod 
Chandran, (2018). “Contactless Finger 
Recognition Using Invariants from 
Higher Order Spectra of Ridge 
Orientation Profiles”, Conference-2018 
25th IEEE International Conference on Image 
Processing (ICIP), pages-2002-2016,IEEE. 
 
Hanees, A.L. & Muhammeth, A.A. 
(2018).”Iot based waste collection 
monitoring system using smart 

phones”, 8th International Symposium, 
SEUSL. 
 
Aboobucker Haalisha, & Jahufer, A., 
(2018).”Time series modelling approach 
for forecasting electricity demand in sri 
lanka”, 8th International Symposium, 
SEUSL. 
 
Najitha, A.R. & Jafeen, M.J.M., 
(2018).”Dependence of effective 
diffusion coefficients of PPY film on 
preparation process”, 8th International 
Symposium, SEUSL. 
 
Thomas, I.B.K. Rizvi, E.M.j.M., & 
Mayazir, N.N. (2018).”Effect of salinity 
on growth and germination of five rice 
varieties cultivated in ampara district”, 
8th International Symposium, SEUSL. 
 
Gamlath, E.G.K.M., Yapa Y.M.N.S., & 
Z.A.M.S.Juman, (2018).”A Comparative 
study on observation initial feasible 

solution to the transportation problem”, 
8th International Symposium, SEUSL. 
 
Mufassirin, M.M., & Hanees, A.L., (2018). 
”Devolpoment of IOT based smart 
energy meter reading and monitoring 

system”, 8th International Symposium, 
SEUSL. 
 
Safeena M.I.S. & Sasmina, T., (2018). 
”Phosphorous on growth and yield of 
three varieties of Amaranth 

(Amaranthus Tricolor L)”, 8th 
International Symposium, SEUSL. 
 
Nisansala Sri Poornima, & Riyas 
Ahamed, (2018).”Preliminary studies of 
grooming behaviour of domestic 

American guinea pig (Caviaporcellus)”, 
8th International Symposium, SEUSL. 
 
Komathiraj, K., (2018).”Statics 

anisotropic relativistic stellar models”, 
8th International Symposium, SEUSL. 
 
Naleer, H.M.M., & Senarathna, D.N. 
(2018).”Fabric defect detection using 

variance and intensity analysis”, 8th 
International Symposium, SEUSL. 
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Thasajini, N., & Krishnapillai, N., 
(2018).”Antimicrobial activity of 
selected medicinal plants from natural 

eco system”, Asian Symposium on 
medicinal plants spices and other natural 
products – XVI  (December 12th – 14th) at 
Bandaranaike Memorial International Hall, 
Colombo Sri Lanka. 
 
Fathima Mafaziya & Thasajini, N., 
(2018).”A Preliminary study on 
Vesicular arbuscular Mycorrhizal 
Associations with Mangrove plants in 
Sri Lanka”,8th International 
symposium,(December 17th and18th). 
 
Raafi, M.A.C.M., (2018).”RFID Approach 
to track clinician activity in the 
operating theatre”,APAMI 2018 Asia-
Pacific Association for medical informatics 
2018,Cinnamon grand,Colombo,sri lanka. 
 
Roshan, A.M.F. & Jahufer, A. 
(2018).”Forecasting sri Lankan tourist 
arrivals: A Comparative study of holt-

winter‟s method versus ARIMA model”, 
8th International Symposium, SEUSL. 

 
Chathuranga Asela Thotawatthage, 
Ziyan, M.A.M., Lakshman Dissanayake, 
&  Zainudeen, U.L. ,(2018). ”STUDY OF 
DYE-SENSITIZED SOLAR CELLS 
WITH TIO2 NANOPARTICLES / 
NANOFIBERS COMPOSITE 
ELECTRODE USING 
PHOTOVOLTAIC AND EIS 
MEASUREMENTS”, Solar Asia 2018, 4th 
International Conference On Solar Energy 
Materials, Solar Cells and Solar Energy 
Applications, National Institute of 
Fundamental Studies, Hantana Road, Kandy, 
Sri Lanka. 

 
Riyas Ahamed, A.M., & Nisansala Sri 
Poornima, (2018).”PRELIMINARY 
STUDIES OF GROOMING 
BEHAVIOR OF DOMESTIC 
AMERICAN GUINEA PIG (Cavia 
porcellus)”, 8th International Symposium 
2018, SEUSL. 
 
 

Papers published as Abstracts in 
Conference Proceedings 
 
Aboobucker Haalisha & Jahufer, A., 
(2018).”Influences of consumer price 
index and gross domestic saving on sri 
Lankan economy: A johansen co-
integration tactic”, ASRS-2018, FAS, 
SEUSL. 
 
Farhana, M.A., Sivakumar, V., & 
Zainudeen, U.L. (2018). ”Extraction and 
utilization of plant pigments for the use 

of sensitization in solar cells”, ASRS-
2018, FAS, SEUSL. 

 
Madhubhashani, H.G.M.P., Adikaram, 
A.M.N.M., Jayawardana D.T.  & 
Udagedra, D.T. (2018),”Possible 
extraction efficiency of iron from 
laterite soil at lower ph : preliminary 

findings”, ASRS-2018, FAS, SEUSL. 
 

Mayazir, N.N. & Jahufer, A. 
(2018).”Geometric distributed lag 
analysis for economic growth of sri 
lanka”, ASRS-2018, FAS, SEUSL. 

 
Gamlath, E.G.K.M. (2018).”Determinants 
of type of delivery in Sri Lanka: A 
logistic regression approach”, ASRS-
2018, FAS, SEUSL. 

 
Raafi, M.A.C.M. (2018).”Towards 
automatic detection of physical 
activities in clinical works”, ASRS-2018, 
FAS, SEUSL. 
 
Roshan, A.M.F. & Jahufer, A. 
(2018).”Forecasting sri Lankan tourist 

arrivals: time series approach”, ASRS-
2018, FAS, SEUSL. 
 
Mohamed Mufassirin, M.M., & Roshan 
G. Ragel, (2018),”A novel filter-wrapper 
based feature selection approach to 
enhance the accuracy of cancer 
classification”, ASRS-2018, FAS, SEUSL. 
 
Manjula, H.A.K.L & Madugalla, T.B.N.S. 
(2018).”Mineral and chemical 
characterization of iron ore deposit in 
buttala, Sri Lanka: Implication for its 
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economic potential”, ASRS-2018, FAS, 
SEUSL. 
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Ashara, LA., Perera, N., Thisara, W.N.D., 
Nidushika, J.A.S., Rahumath, M.S.S. 
Atheefa M.I.F. & Wijewickrama, T. 
(2018).”A Preliminary study on the 
status of vesicular arbuscular 
mycorrhizal Associations with 
mangrove plants in north and western 

parts of Sri Lanka”, ASRS-2018, FAS, 
SEUSL. 
 
Kolilananthan, S., Manjceevan, A.,  & 
Rasalingam, S., (2018).”Extraction of 
Mahua (MADHUCA INDICA) and 
veralu (ELAEOCARPUS SERRATUS) 
oils: a study on their potential use in 
biodiesel production”, ASRS-2018, FAS, 
SEUSL. 

 
Farwin, B.P.H., & Nawas, M.F., 
(2018).”Analysis of ground water 
samples to identify for contributors of 
CKDU”, ASRS-2018, FAS, SEUSL. 
 
Haroon, M.H., Maduka U.T.M.S.H., & 
Sujarajini, V., (2018).”Insecticidal effects 
of plant extracts of some medicinal 
plants against SITOPHILUS ZEAMAISE 

Mostchulsky on stored maize”, ASRS-
2018, FAS, SEUSL. 

 
Haroon, M.H., & Jayasekara, J.M.R., 
(2018).”Allelopathic activity guided 
fractionation of methanol extract of 

Cassia Alata L”, ASRS-2018, FAS, 
SEUSL. 
 
Sasmina, T., & Safeena, M.I.S., (2018). 
”Potential extraction of photosynthetic 
pigments (chloro[hylls A,B and 

Carotenoids) by three solvents”, ASRS-
2018, FAS, SEUSL. 

 
Wijesooriya D.T.C., & Faham, M.A.A.M., 
(2018).”Divisibility patterns in pascal‟s 

triangle”, ASRS-2018, FAS, SEUSL. 
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germination of five low country 
vegetables”, ASRS-2018, FAS, SEUSL. 
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aqueous electrolytes”, ASRS-2018, FAS, 
SEUSL. 
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order ordinary differential equations 
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FAS, SEUSL. 
 
Thahira, T., Magana Arachchi, D.N., 
Rizvi E.M.J.M. & Ekanayake, E.M.U.A. 
(2018).”Molecular Identification of 
Bacteria isolated from lung cancer and 
bronchiectasis patients‟ samples 
through 16S PCR”, ASRS-2018, FAS, 
SEUSL.  
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(2018).”Socioeconomic conditions of 
traditional fishing community of oluvil, 
Ampara district, Sri lanka”, ASRS-2018, 
FAS, SEUSL. 

 
Razmy, A.M., & Widath Rashid Saif Al-
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SEUSL. 
 
Kokilan K. & Komathiraj, (2018).”Exact 

relativistic charged stellar models”, 
ASRS-2018, FAS, SEUSL. Thomas, L.B.K.,  
Rizvi E.M.J.M.  & N.N.Mayazir, (2018).”A 
Preliminary study for salt tolerance of 
five improved rice varieties at 
germination stage”, ASRS-2018, FAS, 
SEUSL. 

 
Madhubhashani, H.G.M.P, Adikaram, 
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Udagedara.D.T, (2018). ”possible 
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Identification of Bacteria Isolated from 
Lung Cancer and Bronchiectasis 

Patients' Samples through 16S PCR”, 
ASRS-2018, FAS, SEUSL. 
 

  
    FACULTY OF ISLAMIC STUDIES AND 

ARABIC LANGUAGE  
 

Publications in refereed indexed 

Journals 

Zaizul Ab Rahman, Siti Nur Diyana Binti 

Mahmud, Akbar Ahmed, Inaba Kayo, 

Razik, A.S., (2018). ”Khuluqiyah 

intelligence as righteous in the behavior 

and honorable in smart campus 

perspective”, International Journal of Civil 

Engineering and Technology, volume-9, 

issue-13, pages-645-654, publisher-IAEME 

Publication 

Zaizul Ab Rahman, Abdul Kadir, Fakhrul 

Adabi, Nurul Husna Mansor & Razik, 

A.S.,(2018), ”Internal and external 

factors of mental health disorders in a 

healthy sustainable soul according to 

islamic psychotherapy in smart campus 

perspective”, International Journal of Civil 

Engineering and Technology, volume-9,issue-

13,pages- 635-644,publisher- IAEME 

Publication 

Nisthar, S., Mustafa, A.M.M., & Mazahir, 

S.M.M., (2018),”A Comparative Analysis 

of the Relationship of Nature of Poverty 

with Zakat Collection and Real Gross 

Domestic Product: An Empirical Study 

in the Context of Malaysia” International 

Journal for Economics and Business 

Management,volume-8,issue-1,pages-21-

36,,publisher- Environmental Advisory for 

Sustainable Trust, Mother Teresa Women’s 

University 

Razik, A.S., Nagoor Gafoordeen & 

Mazahir, S.M.M., (2018), “Hate 

Campaigns and Attacks against the 

Muslims in Recent Sri Lanka”, European 

Journal of Research in Social Sciences Vol.6 

No.1, ISSN 2056-5429.  

Muhammad Rifthy, K., Bulent Tugrul, 
(2018), Outsourcing of Secure k-Nearest 
Neighbours Interpolation Method, 
International Journal of Advanced Computer 
Science and Applications, Volume 9, Issue 4, 
Pages 319-323. 

 

Publications in Non-Indexed Journals 

Mazahir, S.M.M., Asmak Ab Rahman & 

Ramzy, M.I., (2018),” An analysis on 

Takaful operation under conventional 

regulator: a Sri Lankan experience” 

KATHA, volume-13, issue-1, pages-54-72, 

SEUSL. 

Razik, A.S., Nagoor Gafoordeen 

Ahamed & Sunavari Long Kamrudeen 

Salleh (2018), “Buddhists View on 

Muslim Socio-culture in Post-War 

Context of Sri Lanka”,  Sri Lankan 

Journal of Arabic and Islamic Studies Vol.I, 

Issue.I;,FIA, SEUSL.  

Jazeel, M.I.M., Helfan, M.L.M., (2018),” 

Role of Islamic institutions in solving 

family problems among the Muslim 

families of Kattankudy : case study” , 

Sri Lankan Journal of Arabic and Islamic 

Studies Vol.I, Issue.I;, FIA, SEUSL.  

Helfan, M.L.M., Jazeel, M.I.M., (2018),” 

முஸ்யிம் குடும்பங்ைரில் நியஆம் உள்ரைப் 

பி஭ச்ெிகனைள்: ஫ட்டக்ைரப்பு ஜதடுதல் 

மதாகுதிக஬ க஫஬ப்படுத்தி஬ ீரு ைர வுய்ஆ”, 

Sri Lankan Journal of Arabic and Islamic 

Studies Vol.I, Issue.I;, FIA, SEUSL.  

Nisthar, S., & Mazahir, S.M.M., (2018),” 

An Analysis of Compatibility of 

Alleviation of Poverty with distribution 

of wealth: A Study of Islamic 

Perspectives in comparison with the 

Alternative Economic Systems” Sri 

Lankan Journal of Arabic and Islamic 
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Studies, volume-1, issue-1, pages-73-89, 

publisher- SEUSL. 

Munas, M.H.A., Habeebullah, M.T., 

(2018),” Academic and administrative 

structure of Quran Madarasas in Sri 

Lanka: as a model Maruthamunai Quran 

Madarasas”, Sri Lankan Journal of Arabic 

and Islamic Studies, volume-1, issue-1, 

pages-73-89, publisher- SEUSL. 

Jazeel, M.I.M., Fowzul, M.B., (2018), 

”இயங்கை஬ில் ைாறிைரின் தகைக஫ைள்:  டு 

இஸ்யா஫ி஬, ைர அனுபலப் பகுப்பாய்ஆ”, Sri 

Lankan Journal of Arabic and Islamic 

Studies, volume-1, issue-1, pages-73-89, 

publisher- SEUSL. 

 

Full papers published in Conference 

proceedings 

Jesmil, A.R.M., & Habeebullah M.T., 

(2018), “ fpd;dpahtpd; tuyhw;Wg; 
G+u;tPfKk; mjpy; njd;gLk; rKfg; 

gz;ghLfs+k; Xu; Ma;T” FIA, SEUSL. 

Rifa Mahroof, S., (2018), “ Teacher 

Beliefs and Perceptions of Maximising  

Second Language Use in English As A 

Second Language Classroom with 

Reference to Sammanthurai Education 

Zone” 8th International symposium-2018, 

SEUSL. 

Afra, M.I.F., & Shibly, M.N.M., (2018),” 
tpthfuj;J ,lk; ngWtjw;fhd 
fhuzq;fSk; tpthfuj;J ngWk; ngz;fs; 
kPJ mJ nrYj;Jk; jhf;fq;fSk; : 
mDuhjGu khtl;l K];ypk;fis 

ikag;gLj;jpa Ma;T” 8th International 

symposium-2018, SEUSL. 

Nawas, A.N.M., & Habeebullah M.T., 

(2018), “xYtpy; JiwKfKk; R+oy; 

rKfk; vjpu;Nehf;Fk; gpur;rpidfs”;  8th 

International symposium-2018, SEUSL.  

Jazeel, J.M., Sabra, M.A., Marsafa, A.I.F., 

(2018) “,];yhkpa Milf;fyhrhuKk; 

K];ypk; ,sk; ngz;fspd; epiyAk;: 
mf;fiug;gw;W khefurigapid 

ikag;gLj;jpa Ma;T” 5th International 

symposium-2018, SEUSL.  

Helfan, M.L.M., Mazahir, S.M.M., Isfar, 

A.H.M., Safiya, J., Rinoshiya,Y., (2018) 

“,];yhkpa fw;iffs; kw;Wk; mwG nkhop 
gPlj;jpd; ghlnewpfs; njhlu;ghd 

kNdhepiy”- ,yq;ifj; njdfpof;F 
gy;fiofof ehd;F gPlq;fspd; Kd;whk; 
tUl khztu;fs; kw;Wk; 
tpupTiuahsu;fis ikag;gLj;jpa Ma;T 

5th International symposium-2018, 

SEUSL. 

Razick, A.S., & Rushana, A., (2018) 

“Problems faced By Converts to Islam in 

Sri Lanka: A Study Based on 

Anurathapure District” 5th International 

symposium-2018, SEUSL.  

Iyas, L.T.M., (2018)“kJ kw;Wk; Gifj;jy; 
ghtidia ifahStjpy; ,];yhkpa 

cstsJidapd; gq;F” 5th International 

symposium-2018, SEUSL.  

Safiullah, M.I.M, Hilmee, M.S.M, 

Rifka,S.F., & Zahrana,A.F.,(2018)“A 

study of Stress Problems Among Ladies: 

(Special Referance To The Female 

Students of Faculty of Islamic Studies 

and Arabic languages, SEUSL)” 5th 

International symposium-2018, SEUSL. 

Huzafa, M.F., Sathifa, M.C.S., 

(2018).“Contrastive Study on “Arabic 

and Sinhala”Phonetic Systems” 5th 

International symposium-2018, SEUSL. 

Jahan, S.N., Rakshana, A.K.F., Hilmy, 

H.M.A.,(2018), “Application of 

Madhurabah for Saving Account in 

Islamic Finance : (with special reference 

to AMANA Bank Limited)” 5th 

International symposium-2018, SEUSL.   

Helfan, M.L.M., & Mazahir, S.M.M., 
(2018),”jw;nfhiyAk; mjd; 
mz;ikf;fhyg; Nghf;Fk; - vwhTh; 
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nghyp]; gphpit ikag;gLj;jpa fs 
Ma;T”, 5th International Symposium-
2018, FIA, SEUSL. 

Zunoomy, M.S., (2018),”Ehyfj;ij 
cgNahfpg;gjpy; gy;fiyf;fof 
khzth;fspd; <LghL : Xh; kjpg;gPl;lha;T 
(,yq;if njd;fpof;Fg; 
gy;fiyf;fofj;ij ikag;gLj;jpa 
Ma;T)”, 5th International Symposium-
2018,FIA,SEUSL. 

Ayesha Farzana, A.R., & Mazahir, S.M.M. 
(2018),”tpthfuj;jpd; gpd;dH K];ypk; 
ngz;fs; vjph;nfhs;Sk; tho;tpay; 
rthy;fs; - rk;khe;Jiwg; gpuNjrj;ij 
ikag;gLj;jpa Ma;T”, 5th International 
Symposium-2018,FIA,SEUSL. 

Zunoomy, M.S., Shibly, F.H.A., & Asrin, 
M.A.A., (2018),”j/th gzpf;fhf 
r%ftiyj;jsq;fis gad;gLj;Jtjpy; 
Mypk;fspd; epiyg;ghL”(,];yhkpa 
fw;iffs; kw;Wk; mwG nkhopg;gPlj;ij 
ikag;gLj;jpa Ma;T)”, 5th International 
Symposium-2018,FIA,SEUSL. 

Rifas, A.H., Aara, M.N.N., Aysha, S.F., 
Raisdeen, R., Misbah, N.M., (2018), 
”tho;thjhuj;ijg; ngw;Wf;nfhs;tjpy; 
kf;fs; vjpu;Nehf;Fk; gpur;rpidfs;: 
rk;Gefu; fpuhkj;ij ikag;gLj;jpa fs 
Ma;T”,5th International Symposium-
2018,FIA,SEUSL. 

Nawas, A.N.M., Nazha, M.N.F., & 
Habeebullah, M.T., (2018), 
”Rw;Wyhj;Jiwapd; tpUj;jpapdhy; 
K];ypk; khztu;fs; vjpu;Nehf;Ffpd;w 
gpur;rpidfs;: nghj;Jtpy; mWfk;Flh 
gpuNjrj;ij ikag;gLj;jpa Ma;T”, 5th 
International Symposium-2018, FIA, 
SEUSL. 

Razick, M.A.M., Safiullah, M.I.M., 
Fathima Ahana, M.R., Fathima Sajitha, 
A., (2018), ”Role of Ilmul vujoohi van 
nalaayir in translating the words in the 
quran into Tamil language”, 5th 
International Symposium-2018, FIA, 
SEUSL. 

Waseem Akram, W., Mazahir, S.M.M.,  
Farshath, S.L.M. M.N.M. Insyraf, M.T. 
Hidayathulla, (2018), ”ml;lhisr;Nridg; 
gpuNrj;jpy; ghlrhiy khztu; 
,iltpyfYk; mjw;fhd fhuzq;fSk; - 
rk;Gefu; kw;Wk; Myq;Fsk; Mfpa 

fpuhkq;fis ikag;glj;jpa fs Ma;T”, 
5th International Symposium-2018, FIA, 
SEUSL. 

Huzafa, M.F., & Shathifa, M.C.S., (2018), 
“Contrastive Study On “Arabic and 
Sinhala” Phonetic Systems”, 5th 
International Symposium-2018,FIA, 
SEUSL. 

Naufiya, M.Y.F., Husan, M.H., &  
Nafees, S.M.M., (2018), ”K];ypk; 
khztu;fspd; fy;tp Kd;Ndw;wj;jpy; 
ghlrhiy Ehyfq;jspd; gq;fspg;G: 
fk;g`h kw;Wk; kpDthq;nfhl fy;tp 
tyaq;fis ikag;gLj;jpa Ma;T”,  5th 
International Symposium-2018, FIA, 
SEUSL. 

Nisthar, S., & Mazahir, S.M.M., 
(2018),”An Analysis of allocating scarce 
resources: A study on the perspectives 
of Islamic economic system”, 5th 
International Symposium-2018, FIA, 
SEUSL. 

Nashath, M.R.F., & Nairoos, M.H.M.,   
(2018), “Challenges of Islamic 
Microfinance in Sri lanka: With special 
reference to commercial Credit-Head 
Office Colombo”, 5th International 
Symposium-2018, FIA, SEUSL. 

Haleem, H.M.M., &   Issath Nimsith, S., 
(2018),”Islamic Banking in Sri lanka; An 
Alternative Bamking System”, 5th 
International Symposium-2018, FIA, 
SEUSL. 

Rifas, A.H., Inshaf Iqbal, M.I., & Nawas, 
A.N.M., (2018),”Ez;flDk; r%fg; 
gpur;rpidfSk;: XYtpy; gpuNjrj;ij 
ikag;gLj;jpa Ma;T” ,5th International 
Symposium-2018,FIA,SEUSL. 

 Zufa Zereen, M.Z., & Riyad Rooly, 
M.S.A., (2018),”Shari‟ah Governance 
Practices In Islamic Financial 
Institutions: Challenges in Sri Lanka“, 
5th International Symposium-2018, FIA, 
SEUSL. 

Zahira, M.F.F., &   Riyad Rooly, M.S.A., 
(2018),”Issues And Challenges on the 
Practices of Gold Certificate Financing 
In Islamic Financial Institutions in Sri 
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Lanka : Special Reference to Amana 
Bank PLC”,5th International Symposium-
2018, FIA, SEUSL. 

Sahthees, I.M., Ahamed Hilmy, M.H., & 
Muzlifa, M.H.M., (2018),”Shariah Issues 
On the Modern Application Of 
Murabaha In Islamic Financial 
Institutions (IfIS),” 5th International 
Symposium-2018, FIA, SEUSL. 

Nashath, M.R.F., & Nairoos, M.H.M., 
(2018),”Contribution of Islamic 
Economic Models To The Economic 
Growth In Sri lanka: With special 
Reference to Islamic Banking Unit Of  
Boc Head Office Since 2012 Till 2016”, 
5th International Symposium-2018, 
FIA,SEUSL. 

Mahsoom, A.R.M., Hijas, A.M.M., & 
Munas, M.H.A., (2018),” The dropout of 
Arabic college students in Sri Lanka 
“the Sharqiyyah Arabic College as a 
sample”, 5th International Symposium-
2018, FIA, SEUSL.. 

Sahara, M.H.F., Aara, M.N.N., Hilmy, 
H.M.A., (2018), ”Examinig The practice 
of The International Trade in Islamic 
Financial Institutions”,  5th International 
Symposium-2018, FIA, SEUSL. 

Razik,  A.S., & Ameer Rushan, (2018), 
“,];yhj;ijj; jOtpa K];ypk;fs; 
vjpHnfhs;Sk; gpur;rpidfs;: mEuhjGu 
khtl;lj;ij ikag;gLj;jpa Ma;T“, 5th 
International Symposium, FIA, SEUSL. 

 

Papers published as Abstracts in 

Conference proceedings 

Husam,   M.S.M., Munas, M.H.A., 
A.B.M., Aliyar, (2018),” في الروابط استعمال 
 الجامعة مستىي علً ثانية كلغة دارسيها لدي العربية اللغة
 شرق جنىب جامعة من الأولً السنة طلاب نمىذجا
 .SEUIARS-2017, FAC, SEUSL ,”سريلانكا

Safiullah, M.I.M., Munas, M.H.A., (2018), 
”அல்குடுவுனின் ம஫ாறி஬ி஬ல் அற்புதத் 

தன்க஫க஬ மலரிப்படுத்துலதில் „மு஭ாவுதுன் 

நரரீின்‟பங்ைரிப்பு”, SEUIARS-2017,  FAC, 
SEUSL. 

 Husam,   M.S.M., Munas, M.H.A., 
Aliyar, A.B.M., (2018),” The word of 
Rahmath (mercy) in the holy Quran and 
its semantic meaning through the 
Polysemy”, SEUIARS-2017, FAC, SEUSL. 

Mazahir, S.M.M., (2018),”இயங்கை 

முஸ்யிம் தனி஬ாடு ெட்டத்தில் ப஭ா஫ரிப்பும் 

அதன் நகடமுகமயும்: ைற்பிட்டி ைாறி 
நீதி஫ன்மத்கத க஫஬ப்படுத்தி஬ வுய்ஆ”, 

SEUIARS-2017, FAC, SEUSL. 

 

BOOKS 

Mazahir, S.M.M., (2018),”Arabut 

Thamilum Arabut Thamil Aakangelum”, 

Publisher – Student Research Forum 

(SRF) for Social Researches”, SEUSL. 

Volume 1, Pages i-ix and 1-174 

Habeebullah, M.T., (2018),”Islam in 
South East Asia”, SEUSL. 

 

FACULTY OF ENGINEERING  
 

Publications in refereed indexed 
Journals 
 

Muzathik, A.M., & Balthazar, P., (2018). 
”Simulation Analysis of Two-Phase 
Heat Transfer Characteristics in a 
Smooth Horizontal Ammonia (R717) 

Evaporator Tube”, CFD Letters, Volume 
10, Issue 2, Pages 49-58. 
 
Julian Ajith Thamboo & Manicka 
Dhanasekar, (2018), ”Effect of concrete 
block height variation to the shear bond 
strength of thin layer mortared 
masonry”, International Journal of Masonry 
Research and Innovation, volume-03, Issue-2, 
pages-174-193, publisher- Inderscience 
Publishers (IEL). 
 
Jayakody, S., Ranaweera R.A.L.M., & 
Zarafath Zimar, A.M., (2018),  ”Potential 
use of recycled construction and 
demolition waste aggregates for non – 
structural concrete applications”, Journal 
of the National Science Foundation of Sri 

http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/3407
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/3407
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/3407
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/3407
http://192.248.66.13/handle/123456789/3231
http://192.248.66.13/handle/123456789/3231
http://192.248.66.13/handle/123456789/3231
http://192.248.66.13/handle/123456789/3231
http://192.248.66.13/handle/123456789/3216
http://192.248.66.13/handle/123456789/3216
http://192.248.66.13/handle/123456789/3216
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/3180
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/3180
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/3180
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/3180
https://www.inderscienceonline.com/doi/abs/10.1504/IJMRI.2018.092461
https://www.inderscienceonline.com/doi/abs/10.1504/IJMRI.2018.092461
https://www.inderscienceonline.com/doi/abs/10.1504/IJMRI.2018.092461
https://www.inderscienceonline.com/doi/abs/10.1504/IJMRI.2018.092461
https://jnsfsl.sljol.info/articles/10.4038/jnsfsr.v46i2.8421/galley/6505/download/
https://jnsfsl.sljol.info/articles/10.4038/jnsfsr.v46i2.8421/galley/6505/download/
https://jnsfsl.sljol.info/articles/10.4038/jnsfsr.v46i2.8421/galley/6505/download/
https://jnsfsl.sljol.info/articles/10.4038/jnsfsr.v46i2.8421/galley/6505/download/
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Lanka,volume-46,issue-02,pages-205-
216,Publisher-National Science Foundation 
of Sri Lanka,  
 
Aslam Saja, A.M., Melissa Teo, Ashantha 
Goonetilleke & Ziyath, A.M.,(2018), ”An 
inclusive and adaptive framework for 
measuring social resilience to disasters” 
International Journal of Disaster Risk 
Reduction”,volume-28, pages- 862-
873,Publisher- Elsevier. 
 
Risath A.L.M.,  & Chandana Siriwardana, 
(2018), ”ASSESSMENT OF CRITICAL 
SUCCESS FACTORS (CSFs) FOR THE 
DEPLOYMENT OF CONSTRUCTION 
RISK MANAGEMENT PRACTICES IN 
SRI LANKA”, International Journal of 
Civil Engineering (IJCE), volume-7,issue-
5,pages-1-2,publisher- International 
Academy of Science, Engineering and 
Technology. 
 
Full papers published in conference 
proceedings  
 

Hemal, G.K., Jayakody, S., Wijerathna, 
H.H., & Zimar, A.M.Z., 
(2018),”PARTICLE BREAKAGE 
POTENTIAL OF RECYCLED 
CONSTRUCTION AND 
DEMOLITION WASTE (RCDW) AS 
AN UNBOUND PAVEMENT 
MATERIAL”, 9th International Conference 
on Sustainable Built Environment 2018, 
Earl's Regency, Kandy, Sri Lanka. 
 
Kumara, P.D.C., Viraj M.P.S., Suraweera, 
S.K.K., Jayaweera, H.H.E., Muzathik 
A.M. & Ariyaratne, T.R .(2018),”Solar 
Thermal Energy Harnessing Using a 
Parabolic Trough Concentrator”, 3rd 
International Conference on Advances in 
Computing and Technology (ICACT‒2018), 
Faculty of Computing and Technology, 
University of Kelaniya, Sri Lanka., Solar 
Thermal Energy Harnessing Using a 
Parabolic Trough Concentrator. 
 
Chandana Sriwardana & Risath, A.L.M., 
(2018),”A Study to Investigate the 
Application of Risk Management 
Techniques in Sri Lankan Construction 

Projects”, Annual Sessions of IESL, 
Colombo, pages- 643-654. 
 
Hirshan R., Jeyakaran, T., Elilarasy, R., 
Sumaiya, M.H.F. & Soysa, R.I.,   
(2018),”Effect of Shear Wall in High-rise 
Buildings Subjected to Dynamic 

Loading”, IntSym2018, SEUSL. 
 
Papers published as abstracts in 
conference proceedings  
 
Murshid, M.B., (2018), ”Inventive 
comparison between engineering 
science and Hinduism”,  SEUARS-2017, 
FAC, SEUSL. 
 
Murshid, M.B., (2018),” Presence of 

Philosophy in engineering”, SEUARS-
2017, FAC, SEUSL. 

 

FACULTY OF TECHNOLOGY  
 

Full papers published in Conference 
Proceedings 
 
Thariq, M.G.M., & Nusrathali, (2018), 
“Study of Cow Comfort and 
Management Practices in Semi –Intensive 
Farming Systems in Kalmunai Veterinary 
Division”, 8th International Sympossium-
2018, SEUSL. 
 

Narmilan, A., (2018), Structural 
measures for flood risk mitigation in the 
agricultural field: a review, 6 th 
International Symposium on Advances in 
Civil and Environmental Engineering 
Practises for Sustainable Development 
(ACEPS-2018). University of Ruhuna. 
 
Narmilan, A., Sugirtharan, M., (2018), 
Modelling the crop water requirement in 
Batticaloa district, Sri Lanka: FAO-Cropwat 
modelling for rice, 4th Jaffna University 
International research Conference 
(JUICe2018), University of Jaffna. 
 
Begum, S.L.R., Pavithira, E.,  and 
Mubarak, A.N.M., (2018), 
CONTRIBUTION OF GROWTH AND 

https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S2212420918301547
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S2212420918301547
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S2212420918301547
http://repository.kln.ac.lk/handle/123456789/19006
http://repository.kln.ac.lk/handle/123456789/19006
http://repository.kln.ac.lk/handle/123456789/19006
https://scholar.google.com/scholar?oi=bibs&cluster=12111542717020994660&btnI=1&hl=en
https://scholar.google.com/scholar?oi=bibs&cluster=12111542717020994660&btnI=1&hl=en
https://scholar.google.com/scholar?oi=bibs&cluster=12111542717020994660&btnI=1&hl=en
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/3188
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/3188
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/3188
javascript:void(0)
javascript:void(0)
javascript:void(0)
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PHYSIOLOGICAL CHARACTERISTICS 
IN YIELD OF FIELD GROWN RICE 
VARIETIES IN LOW COUNTRY DRY 
ZONE8th International Symposium-2018, 
SEUSL. 
 
 
Papers published as abstract in 
Conference Proceedings 
 
Srirangan, S., & Ahmedh Rifai Kariapper, 
R.K., (2018),”Optimal algorithm for 

melanoma skin cancer detection”, 7th 
Annual Science Research Session-2018, FAS, 
SEUSL. 
 
Ahamed Sabani, M.J.,  Shafana, M.S., 
(2018),”progression of selection rate of 
information and communication 
technology subject in GCE Advanced 
Level at Ampara District”, 7th Annual 
International Research Conference 2018, 
FMC, SEUSL. 
Books 

Rasmiya Begum, & Mubarak, A.N.M., 
(2018),”Principles and Techniques for 
Managing Melon Fruit Fly (Bactrocera 
cucurbitae) in Cucurbits”, ISBN: 978-
955-38982-0-3, Publisher: Author 

publisher, Date of publication:2018-06-15, 
Edition: First, No. of Copies: 50. 

 

LIBRARY  
 

Full papers published in Conference 
Proceedings 

Mr.A.M.Nahfees and Mr.M.C.M.Azwer, 

(2018),“Usage study of online public 

access catalogue (OPAC) at south 

eastern university of sri lanka at 8th 

international symposium-2018,SEUSL 

Mr.S.L.Mohammed Sajeer, (2018),” 

Impact of information skills on 

information retrieval activities for 

public library staff in ampara district, 8th 

international symposium-2018, SEUSL.  

Bandara, B.E.S., R.P.de Silva and 

Dayawansa, N.D.K., (2018),”Analysis of 

forest covers loss in wilpattu forest 

complex: A remotely sensed change 

detection and fragmentation analysis, 

30th PGIA Annual Congress, 2018.    

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.researchgate.net/scientific-contributions/2155733385_Mubarak_ANM?_sg=97RQapJO4BBDtMgi_Be9XeaXnG6ISsPk4EcpITqtgXRmVPb5L6-oPz1_tvbCuxXsQIA-WUA.JQkCplMhOjavApBEE3QNKwip9EwoAOiDfvyw5UqbzY6XgcqRvQje0mVq3d8TlJHPgZqKTqfAKGJsT8qKQpUscA
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10. Information of International Staff visited to SEUSL in 2018 

Details of international Staff visited for Undergraduate 

Teaching/Postgraduate Teaching/ Research/Symposium/Workshop 

in the year 2018 are shown below. 

Faculty Name of the Programme   Country No. of Staff 

FAC 
Korean Language Korea 1 

English Language (TESL) United Kingdom 1 

FMC 
Annual International 
Research Conference-2018 

India 5 

USA 1 

FE Guest Lecture 
Italy 1 

USA 2 

SEUSL International Symposium India 12 

 
 

11. Details of Knowledge Dissemination to the General Public during 

the Year-2018 

 

 

 

Faculty 

Category 

(workshops/ 

training 

programmes/ field 

demonstrations/ 

media programmes) 

Organized by 

Target Group  

(e.g Mushroom 

Farmers, School 

Children)   

FAC 

Training Programme 

on Women's Rights 

and Gender Based 

Violence(GBV) 

Human Rights 

Commission of 

Sri Lanka 

(45 participants) 

Students from 

Department of 

Political Science, and 

Sociology 

A Session on 

Communication 

Skills 

Department of 

English 

Language 

Teaching 

A group of students 

who follow English 

Access Programme at 

the Smart 

International, Matara 
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12. Details of Program, Seminars & Workshops 

Table 12.1: Details of the Program, Seminars and Workshops conducted by Career Guidance Unit 

(CGU) of SEUSL are given below. 

 

 

No Title of the program 
Number of 
Participants 

Target group Date 

Workshops 

1 C.V Writing and Facing Job Interview 182 
Final Year BBA,B.Com 
Undergraduates / FMC 

13.01.2018 

2 
Goal Setting for Career Life and Goal 
Directed Learning 

116 
First Year BBA  
Undergraduates / FMC 

17.01.2018 

3 Attitude Change for Success 269 
First Year 
Undergraduates/FAC 

24.02.2018 

4 
Making Best Opportunities for Career 
Development 

239 24.02.2018   

5 
Importance of Soft Skills for Career 
opportunities 

320 First Year 
Undergraduates/FIA 

17.02.2018 

6 Personality Development 305 17.02.2018    

7 
C.V Writing and How to Face 
Interview 

108 
B.Com Final Year 
Students / FMC 

15.12.2019 

Awareness Programmes 

8 Impotence of Career Guidance 350 1st  Year Students/FIA 17.01.2018 

9 Impotence of Career Guidance 115 1st  Year Students /FT 21.02.2018 

10 What is Career guidance? 125 1st  Year Students /FMC 03.05.2018 

Short Term courses   

Short Term course in Professional Writing (45 Hours) 

11 Professional Writing 35 
1st  Year Studentsl/ all 
faculties 

2017.11.01-
2018.01.19 

Short Term course in Guidance & Counseling (36 Hours) 

12 
Importance of Guidance & counseling 
in Human Life 

261 

Second Year Students 
from all faculties 

03.02.2018 

13 
Career Development through 
Entrepreneurship 

232 03.02.2018 

14 Managing Phobia & Anxiety 275 17.02.2018 

15 
Career Advancements in Professional 
Courses 

269 17.02.2018 

16 
Effective Leadership Skills for 
Employment Opportunities 

255 
 

24.02.2018 

17 Managing Emotions at Work Place 265 24.02.2018 

18 Disaster and Psycho social Effects 255 05.05.2018 

19 Research & professional Development 245 05.05.2018 

20 Work Ethics & Office Management 265 12.05.2018 

21 
Personality Development & Facing 
Interview 

242 12.05.2018 

22 Preparatory steps for job searching 255 13.05.2018 

23 
Human behavioral changes and well 
being 

266 13.02.2018 
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Table 12.2: The details of the Program, Seminars and Workshops conducted by Staff Development 

Centre (SDC) SEUSL-2018 

 

S/N Programme/ Description Date & Time To whom 
No 

Participated 

01 

A Preparation Course on 
“Official Language Proficiency 
Examination (Written/ Oral) 
Sinhala” Level – III  
Duration: 150 hrs. 

Commenced on 
20.09.2016 

Concluded on 
30.01.2018 

Technical, 
Clerical & Allied 
Grade Staff 

 

18 

02 

A Preparation Course on 
“Official Language Proficiency 
Examination (Written/ Oral) 
Sinhala” Level – IV 
Duration: 100 hrs.,  

Commenced on 
30.09.2016 

Concluded on 
26.01.2018 

Primary Level 
Staff 

 

25 

03 
Induction Programme for 
Academic Staff, Batch – II  
(5th segment) Module 09 & 10 

20.01.2018 
Probationary 
Academic Staff 

15 

04 

Coaching Seminar (1st segment) 
for the recruitment examination 
of AR/AB/AIA and promotion 
examination of CAA 

19th, 20th & 21st 
of January 2018 

Non Academic 
Staff who applied 
for the 
examination 

17 

05 
Induction Programme for 
Academic Staff, Batch – II  
(6th segment) Module 06 

23rd & 24th of 
February 2018 

Probationary 
Academic Staff 

21 

06 

Induction Programme for 
Academic Staff, Batch – II (7th 
segment) Module 07 “Teaching 
Practice”  

27th & 28th of 
April 2018 

23 

07 
Induction Programme for 
Academic Staff, Batch – II (8th 
segment) Module 08  

18th & 19th of 
May 2018 

22 

08 

Work-oriented Training 
Workshop on “Microsoft EXCEL 

Advanced Learning” (Batch – 
III)  

11, 31 August 
and 01 
September 2018 

 Technical, 
Clerical & Allied 
Grade Staff 

17 

09 

One day Workshop on 
“Transparent Research 

Performance” organized in 
collaboration with the Library, 
SEUSL  

15 August 2018 Academic Staff 42 

 

Short Term programmes 

Programme on Soft Skills Development 

24 
Grooming and Attitudes for preparing 
job market 

79 
Final Year Students of 
Faculty of Applied 
Sciences 

03.11.2018 

25 
Effective teamwork and leadership 
qualities for employability 

65 04.11.2018 

26 Facing job interviews 58 04.11.2018 

Collaborative programmes 

27 
Imagine IF Entrepreneurship 
development programmme (In 
Collaboration with ICTA sri lanka) 

87 
 

Selected Students from 
all Faculties 

02.10.2018 
16.10.2018 
23.10.2018 
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Table 12.3 Sponsored Activities of SDC 
 

A. Local Workshop/ Seminar/ Training Programme/ Short cources 

S/N Programme  Participant/s 

01.  Induction Programme at Eastern University, Sri Lanka  
Mr. M.T. Habeebullah,  
Lecturer/FIA 

02.  Induction Programme at Eastern University, Sri Lanka  
Mr. I.L. Mohamed Zahir,  
Lecturer (Prob.) /FAC 

03.  
Certificate Course in “Teaching in Higher Education” 
(CTHE)  at University of Colombo 

Mrs. SH. Sadeeka Farwin,  
Lecturer (Prob.) /FAC 

04.  
Certificate Course in “Teaching in Higher Education” 
(CTHE)  at University of Colombo 

Ms. MS. Fathima Sulaiha,  
Lecturer (Prob.), FIA 

05.  
One day Workshop on “Designing a High Performance 
Company” organized by the National Institute of 
Labour Studies (NILS)  

Mr. I.L. Thasleen 
Mr. M.T. Ahamed Azhar 
Mr. M.S.M. Fazeel 
Dr. M.I.M. Jazeel 

06.  
One day Workshop on “What can we learn from 
Japanese Management?” organized by the National 
Institute of Labour Studies (NILS)  

Mr. S. Sivakumar 
Mrs. Anojah Vasitharan 
Mr. S. Prashanth 

07.  
Sports Injuries Management Course organized by the 
National Institute of Sports Science, Ministry of Sports  

Mr. Mughammeth Ikbal 

08.  

Two day Workshop on “Open Source Library 
Management Software/ Digital Library Software - 
DSpace” organized by the National Science Library and 
Resource Centre (NSLRC) of the National Science 
Foundation (NSF) of Sri Lanka  

Mr. B.E.S. Bandara 
Assistant Librarian 
 

09.  
Workshop on “Research Methodology”, organized by 
the NLDSB, Ministry of Education 

Mr. B.E.S. Bandara 

Assistant Librarian 

10.  
Certificate Course in Introduction to SPSS for 
Statistical Analysis  

Mr. ALMA. Shameem 

Snr. Lecturer/ FMC 

11.  Induction Programme  University of Peradeniya 
Ms. T.W.G.F. Mafaziya 
Nijamdeen, Lecturer 
(Prob.)/FAS 

12.  

Induction Programme at Eastern University, Sri Lanka  

Ms. N. Thasajini,  
Lecturer (Prob.)/ FAS 

13.  
Mr. A. Narmilan,  
Lecturer (Prob.)/ FT 

14.  
Workshop on “Right Attitude for Better Performance” 
organized by the University Librarians Association 
(ULA) of Sri Lanka , University of Sri Jayewardenepura. 

1. Mr. U.L.M. Fowsh,  
Library Info Asst.  

2. Mr. A.K. Ashraff,  
Library Info Asst. 

3. Mr. A.M. Aasath,  
Library Info Asst. 
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Conference/ Symposium 

S/N 
Title of the paper and Name of the Conference/ 

Symposium 
Presenter/ Participant 

15 

“Enhancing the performance of Pbs:Hg quantum dot –

sensitized solar cells by controlling the surface charge of 

TiO2 electrode” at the Solar Asia 2018 international 

conference  

Mr. T. Jaseetharan 

Lecturer (Prob.) in 

Physics/FAS 

16 

 “Changing Dynamics of Minority Politics in Post-war Sri 

Lanka: A Case Study of Muslim Politics” in the 22nd 

International Conference and International Seminar, 

organized by the Association of Third World Studies South 

Asia Chapter (ATWS-SAC) in collaboration with the 

University of Jaffna  

Mr. M.A.M. Fowsar 

Lecturer in Political Science, 

FAC 

17 

“RFID approach to track clinician activity in the operating 

theatre” at the Asia-Pacific Association for Medical 

Informatics (APAMI 2018) conference organized by the 

Health Informatics Society of Sri Lanka. 

Mr. M.A.C.M. Raafi 

Lecturer (Prob.) in Computer 

FAS 

18 
 National Symposium on “Gender in Higher Education” 

(NSGHE 2018), University Grants Commission. 

Mrs. A.W.N. Naleefa,  

Lecturer in Sociology/ FAC 

19 

“The Influence of Celebrity Endorsement on Undergraduates 

Purchasing Behavior” at the 03rd International Research 

Conference – TRInCo 2018, Eastern University, Sri Lanka. 

Mr. ALMA. Shameem, 

Snr. Lecturer/ FMC 

20 

“Contribution of Medieval Muslim Arab Scholars to the 

development in the field of Psycholinguistics study” at the 

03rd International Research Conference – TRInCo 2018. 

Trinco Campus, Eastern University, Sri Lanka. 

Mr. M.T. Habeebullah, 

Lecturer / FIA 

21 

“Academic Libraries as Research Saturation Centres: 

Reshaping the Libraries for tomorrow” International 

Conference, University Librarians Association of Sri Lanka. 

1. Mr. M.M. Rifaudeen 

Librarian 

2. Mr. M.C.M. Azwer 
Snr. Asst. Librarian 

3. Ms. M.M. Mashroofa 

Snr. Asst. Librarian 

4. Mr. BES. Bandara 
Asst. Librarian 

   Other Programme 

22 

As per the instruction of Competent Authority, SDC 

coordinated the following programme organized by the 

Presidential Secretariat. “The Launch of 2030 National 

Sustainability Discourse” held on 06.08.2018 at BMICH, 

Colombo 

 

1. Dr. UL. Abdul Majeed 

2. Dr. ANM. Mubarak 

3. Mr. MM. Rifaudeen 

4. Dr. MIM. Jazeel 
5. Mr. MSM. Jalaldeen 

6. Eng. ALM. Risath 

7. Dr. BGN. Sewwandi 
8. Dr. MNM. Farhath 

9. Mrs. MAC. Sulaiha Beevi 
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Table 12.4: The details of the Program, Seminars and Workshops conducted by Student 

Support Services and Welfare Unit (SSS&W) of SEUS incollaboration with Students 

Societies and Student Unions of SEUSL 

 

S.N Date Program 
Collaborative programme of 
Office of the Director/SSS&W 
with 

01 10.01.2018 
“SAHA” short film making and 
releasing  

NM. Asau Deen (Student FMC)/ 
Director of the film  

02 13.01.2018 
“Student Welfare Program” (Improve 
the co-operation and Artistic abilities of 
Students)  Faculty Student Union, FMC  

03 17.01.2018 “Musical Review Program”  

04 
31.01.2018- 
04.02.2018 

“Independence Day Program” 
Faculty Student Union, FMC  

05 18.01.2018 “Blood Donation Program”  

06 16.02.2018 “Wella Beach Musical Programme”  
FE 15 Batch  

07 01.03.2018 “Buddhist Religious program” 

08 
03 & 
04.03.2018 

Making a video showcasing the beauty 
and enjoyment of university life  

Faculty Student Union, FAS  

09 04-06.05.2018 “Hindu Temple Devotional function”  Hindu Society, SEUSL  

10 05.05.2018 “Cricket tournament” Muslim Majlis, SEUSL  

11 12.05.2018 “Cultural competition”  Tamil Sangam  

12 14.05.2018 “Vesak Ceremony”  FE 15 Batch  

13 18.05.2018 “Bana” programat  Faculty Student Union, FT  

14 20.05.2018 “New year function”  Faculty Student Union, FAS  

15 20.05.2018 “New year function”  Faculty Student Union, FMC  

16 24.05.2018 “Ifthar function”  Muslim Majlis  

17 25 - 26.05.2018 E-Ablaze 2018 Concert at SEUSL Student Union, FE  

18 25.05.2018 
“Logistics conference 2018 at Naval & 
Maritime Academy, Trincomalee  

Naval & Maritime Academy, 
Naval Base, Trincomalee 

19 26.05.2018 “Seminar on Improve in English”  Tamil Sangam  

20 30.05.2018 “Bodhi Pooja” religious program  
Faculty Student Union, FMC 

21 02.06.2018 “Clasical Muslic function” 

22 12.06.2018 
Inter Social Harmony project final 
awarding ceremony at University of 
Colombo 

University of Colombo and South 
Eastern University of Colombo. 

23 26.06.2018 
“Annual Poson Poya day Bana 
Program” Faculty Student Union, FMC  

24 27.06.2018 Possan Ice Cream Dansal Program  

25 28.06.2018 
“Islamic Festival Sweet Distribution 
program  

Student Union, FIA 

26 28-29.06.2018 
Training workshop on Transitional 
Justice for long lasting peace in Sri 
Lanka 

National peace council of Sri Lanka  

27 30.06.2018 Day & Night Cricket tournament  Student Union, FIA 

28 04.07.2018 
“Pirapanchathin Megi” Book launching 
ceremony by Ms. ALF. Safana  

Tamil Music Circle 
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29 07-16.07.2018 “Annual Sankafiseham” Hindu Society 

30 13.07.2018 
“Sambudhu Wandhanaa” musical 
function in order to celebrate poson 
festival  

Student Union, FE  

31 20.07.2018 
“Lecture on environmental 
conservation and Tree plantation 
program” 

Student Union, FMC 32 03.08.2018 Entertainment Musical Program  

33 07.08.2018 “Blood Donation Campaign”  

34 17.08.2018 Musical Program 

35 25-26.08.2018 “Pirith Chanting and Alms giving”  
Student Union and Buddhist 
Society, FAS   

36 08.09.2018 “Soft Ball Cricket Tournament” Student Union, FIA 

37 26.09.2018 “Blood Donation Program” Muslim Majlis, SEUSL  

38 09.10.2018 “Cricket Tournament” 
Coordinator, FMC Business fair 
group  

39 08.12.2018 “Cricket Tournament”  Muslim Majlis, SEUSL 

40 09.12.2018 “Cricket Tournament”  Hindu Society, SEUSL 

41 12.12.2018 “Kannadi” Short film making  Student Union, FIA 

42 15.12.2018 “Entertainment Musical Program”  Student Union, FMC 

43 16-17.12.2018 “Day & Night Cricket Tournament”  Student Union, FIA 

44 18.12.2018 “Annual Ijthima-2018”  Muslim Majlis 

45 18.12.2018 “Annual Christmas Carols Program”  Student Union, FMC  

46 21.12.2018 Cultural Program  Hindu Society  

47 27.12.2018 “Nenge Elu” cultural Program  Student Union, FAC 

48 31.12.2018 Musical Program  Student Union, FE  

 

13. Details of Awards Received: 

Award 

category 

Name of the 

Award 

National/ 

International 

Name of the 

awardee and 

country 

Name/s of the 

recipient 

 Research 
President's award 
for scientific 
publications-2016 

 National Sri Lanka A.Manjceevan  

             

14. Details of New Courses Started 

Faculty Department Course Duration Medium 

No new cources started in 2018 
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15. Details of Project Expenditure  
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2016 
Construction of 

Auditorium 
Loan 

Kuwait Fund 

for Arab 

Economic 

Development 

265,357,167.50 284,406,542.69 100 

2017 

Construction of Four 

Storied 100 Rooms 

Hostel Building at 

SEUSL (ICC Hostel - 

06), Sammanthurai 

Grant GOSL 212,748,512.50 207,429,897.18  100 

2017 

Design, Construction 

and Commissioning 

of Building Complex 

for   Technology 

Studies 

Grant GOSL 443,624,004.30 222,861,297.51 53% 

 

16. Details of Financial Progress  

16.1 Income 
(Rs. Million) 

 
  Notes: 

 (1) "Government Grant" refers to treasury grant received for Recurrent Expenditure, Capital 

Expenditure, Mahapola & Bursaries.  

 (2) "Other Income" refers to Income from interests, fees, sales and miscellaneous receipts and 

generated income from extension programmes & other activities too. 

 

 

16.1.1 Generated Income (Extension Programmes and Postgraduate Studies) 

 

 

year Government Grant (1) Other Income (2) Total 

2017 1,456.72 47.06 1,503.78 

2018 1,616.12 27.43 1,643.55 

Subject Collection in 2018 (Rs.) 

Undergraduate Studies  21,066,250.00 

Diploma Programmes 1,836,200.00 

Certificate Programmes 24,500.00 

Postgraduate Studies 8,039,100.00 

Total 30,966,050.00 
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16.2 Recurrent Expenditure of Major Programmes 

                                                                                                             (Rs. Million) 

Year 

General 
Administration 
& Staff 
Services 

Academic 
Services 
(2) 

Welfare 
Services 
(3) 

Maintenance 
Services 

Others  
(1) 

Total 
Recurrent 
Expenditure 

2017 299.31 583.75 187.69 69.19 20.75 1,160.69 

2018 318.03 694.92 208.66 65.88 21.46 1,308.946 

(Excludes Depreciation) 

    Notes:  

(1) "Others" refers to expenditure on Postgraduate Studies, Research Expenses, Research Publications, 
External Examinations, Ancillary Activities, Extension Courses, Advanced Accounts, Physical 
Education, Farms, etc.  

(2) "Academic Services" includes Teaching Resources as well. 
(3) "Welfare Services" includes expenditure incurred on Mahapola & Bursaries too. 

   

16.2.1   Recurrent Expenditure on Academic Services 

           (Rs. Million) 
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7 120.66 98.65 113.92 67.95 103.00 29.41 36.39 13.77 583.75 

2
01

8 

140.44 126.03 135.99 80.17 113.40 39.43 42.42 17.04 694.92 

 
 

16.3 Capital Expenditure 

               (Rs. Million) 

Year 
Construction 

Lands, 
Equipments, 
Furniture, Library 
Books, Periodicals 
& Vehicles 

Rehabilitation 
& Maintenance 
of Capital 
Assets 

Other 
Capital 
Projects 
(1) 

Total 
Capital 
Expenditure 

Government Grant 

2017 10.37 327.01 45.00 7.62 390.00 

2018 - 108.18 47.82 134.36 290.36 

Note: 

(1) "Other Capital Projects" refers to grants for Technology stream, postgraduate research, 
knowledge enhancement & institutional development, staff development, etc  
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  16.4  Expenditure 

Subject 
Provision in 2018 

Rs. 
Expenditure in 

2018 Rs. 
Savings / Excess 

Rs. 

Recurrent Except Project 1,151,000,000 1,308,946,389.08 (157,946,389.08) 

Capital Except Project 375,000,000 299,196,420.23 75,803,579.77 

Total 1,526,000,000 1,608,142,809.31 (82,142,809.31) 

  

17. Financial Performance Analysis – 2018 

  17.1 Cost per student (Recurrent expenses) 

Faculty 
No. of 

Students 
Cost per Student Rs 

Arts and Culture 1,037 371,443.69 

Management and Commerce 1,205 340,600.05 

Applied Sciences 638 449,171.27 

Islamic Studies and Arabic Languages 1,164 304,883.07 

Engineering 550 442,194.69 

Technology 308 364,021.82 
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18. Annual Accounts – 2018 

 

South Eastern University of Sri Lanka 

Annual Statement of Accounts 2018 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER ON 

 ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR 2018 

 

The final statement of accounts of the South Eastern University of Sri 

Lanka for the Financial Year Ended 31st December 2018 has been prepared 

in the form and manner specified by the University Grants Commission in 

terms of section 106 and 107 of the University Act No. 16 of 1978 and in 

terms of the Finance Act No. 38 of 1971 and has been rendered to the 

Auditor General together with the notes and schedules referred to in the 

Income and Expenditure Account and the Balance Sheet. 

Financial rules and procedures prescribed by the University Grants 

Commission have been complied with and the systems of control have 

been maintained as far as practicable to ensure propriety of transctions and 

efficiency in expenditure 

To the best of my knowledge, the statement in respect of the year 2018 has 

been prepared satisfactorily and exhibits a true and fair view of the 

financial position of the University. 
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 South Eastern University of Sri Lanka  

    
  Statement of Financial Position  

    
    

As at 31st ecember Note 
2018 2017 

 Rs   Rs  

ASSETS 

Non Current Assets       

Property, Plant and Equipment  01        5,686,398,822      4,981,651,682  

Net Non current  Assets         5,686,398,822      4,981,651,682  

Work in Progress  02           263,918,239         129,560,293  

        

Investments       

Financial Assets  03             26,569,342             2,472,942  

Total Non Current Assets        5,976,886,403      5,113,684,918  

Current Assets 
   

Inventories / Stocks  04             10,468,824           12,174,638  

Accounts Receivables  05            94,549,515        112,756,265  

Cash and Cash Equivalents  06           130,908,639           41,805,463  

Total Current Assets            235,926,978         166,736,366  

Total Assets         6,212,813,381      5,280,421,283  

FUNDS AND LIABILITIES 
  

FUNDS       

Restricted Fund  07               1,654,907             1,680,976  

Capital Grant  08        7,299,363,811      6,361,423,788  

        

Reserves       

Accumulated Fund  09      (1,768,429,035)   (1,710,911,738) 

Revaluation Reserves           450,200,000         450,200,000  

Total Equity and Reserves        5,982,789,683     5,102,393,025  

Non Current Liabilities       

Provision for Gratuity  10          146,379,772         115,201,365  

Provision for Legal Cases  11              3,830,000                            -    
        

Current Liabilities       

Accounts Payables  12             46,423,116          51,848,805  

Accrued Expenses              33,390,810           10,978,089  

Total Funds & Liabilities        6,212,813,381      5,280,421,283  

These  financial  statements  have  been  prepared and  presented  in  compliances   with  
Sri Lanaka Public Sector Accounting Standards (SLPSAS) issued  by  the  Institute  of 
Chartered Accountants  of  Sri Lanka   and   in   terms of   Sections   106   (i)      and  107  
(ii)   (b)  of the Universities Act No:16 of 1978 and section 13 (6) of the Finance Act No: 38 
of 1971. 
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 South Eastern University of Sri Lanka  

    

 Statement of Financial Performance  

        
As at 31st December Note 

2018 2017 

 Rs   Rs  
 

 
  

 Income 
   

Recurrent Grant              1,052,000,000                  906,366,000  

Mahapola & Bursary Grant                 181,618,000                  160,349,500  

Other Income                                         13                 27,426,902                    47,057,544  

Amortization of Capital 
Grant 

  
                 

483,444,748  
                                    

-    

               1,744,489,650               1,113,773,044  

    Expenditure 
   

Personal Emoluments                 858,996,853                  717,854,816  

Traveling and Subsistence                     4,263,558                      4,547,443  

Supplies                   29,245,691                    30,154,241  

Maintenance                   18,381,141                    29,723,419  

Contractual Services                 141,133,368                  139,362,676  

Other Recurrent Expenses                   42,414,818                    43,176,872  

Depreciation                 483,444,748                  379,998,575  

Write off Loss                                    -    278,693  

Gratuity                   32,892,960                    35,247,825  

Financial Assistance to 
Students 

                181,618,000                 160,349,500  

               1,792,391,137               1,540,694,060  

Excess of Income over 
Expenditure 

               (47,901,487)              (426,921,016) 

Prior Year Adjustment                (9,615,809)                 (15,079,785) 

Net surplus/(Deficit) for the 
period 

  
                 

(57,517,296) 
               

(442,000,801) 
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 South Eastern University of Sri Lanka  

   

 

 Cash Flow Statement  
   

   
For the Year ended 31st December  2018 2017 

Rs Rs 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities     

   Surplus from Ordinary Activities  (57,517,296)          (442,000,801) 
      
Adjustment   

 
Depreciation in prior year adjustment            15,531,357                17,227,909  

      

Non - Cash movements     
Depreciation           483,444,748               379,998,575  
Provision for Gratuity            31,178,408                 33,492,856  
Provision for Leagal Cases              3,830,000                               -    
Loss of Write off                            -                      278,693  
Amortization of Capital Grant        (483,444,748)                                 -    
      

     (6,977,531)             (11,002,768) 

Increase / (Decrease) in Accounts Receivables     18,206,750                 10,961,525  
Increase / (Decrease) in Inventory        1,705,814                (3,330,338) 
Increase / (Decrease) in Current Liability      16,987,032                      514,623  

      36,899,596                  8,145,811  

      
      

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities           29,922,065                (2,856,958) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities     

      
Acquisition of Fixed Assets (299,196,420)          (708,254,228) 
Fixed Deposit         (24,096,399)                               -    
      

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities 
             

(323,292,820) 
             

(708,254,228) 

Cash Flows from Financing Activities     

Restricted Fund 
                       

(26,069) 
                     

(859,042) 
Government Grant for Capital Expenditure          382,500,000              393,300,000  
      

Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities         382,473,931              392,440,958  

Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents           89,103,176           (318,670,227) 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of the 
Period 

           41,805,463              360,475,690  

      

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period          130,908,639                 41,805,463  
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76 Annual Report 2018|South Eastern University of Sri Lanka 

South Eastern University of Sri Lanka 

 

Accounting Policies 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT POLICIES 

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION 

 

1.1. General Information 

South Eastern university of Sri Lanka (SEUSL) is established under the Universities Act No 16 

of 1978, and located in the Eastern Province, Ampara District, Oluvil in Sri Lanka. 

 

1.2. Principal activities and nature of operations 

South Eastern University of Sri Lanka is a national university mainly operates on Government 

funds and promoting higher education and research in the field of Engineering, Social Sciences, 

Applied Sciences, Islamic and Arabic Languages, Commerce and Management and Technology.  

 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 

2.1. Statement of Compliance 

The statement of financial Position, statement of financial performance, statement of changes 

in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the accounting policies and notes have 

been prepared in compliance with the Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards (SLPSAS) 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accounts of Sri Lanka and the requirements of the 

Universities Act No 16 of 1978 and subsequence amendments thereto. The financial Statements 

comprise the financial statements of the University as at 31st December 2018.  

2.2. Basis of Measurement 

The financial statements of SEUSL have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the 

historical cost convention unless stated otherwise.  

 
2.3. Functional and Presentation Currency 

The financial statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees (SLR), which is the functional 

currency and presentation currency and all values are rounded to the nearest rupees except 

when otherwise. 

2.4. Comparative Information 

 The comparative figures have been re-arranged where necessary to conform to the 

presentation in the current year. 

2.5. Use of Estimates and Judgments 

The presentation and preparation of financial statements in conformity with SLPSASs requires 

management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the 

accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual 

results may differ from these estimates and judgmental discussions.  

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 

accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the 

revision effects on that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision 

affects both current and future periods. 
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South Eastern University of Sri Lanka 

Accounting Policies 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

3.1. PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 

(a) Recognition and Measurement 

Properties, plant & equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation.  The cost of 

property, plant & equipment is the cost of purchase or construction together with any incidental 

expenses thereon. 

 
(b)  Cost 

The cost of property, plant & equipment comprise its purchase or construction cost and any directly 

contributable cost of bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use. 

 
(c)  Depreciation 

Depreciation is charged to the income statement on the straight line basis at the following rates per 

annum in order to write off the cost of such assets over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation is 

provided on pro rata basis on the asset purchased/constructed/disposed of during the year. 

 

Buildings     5% 

Furniture & Fittings    10% 

Lab & Teaching Equipments   20% 

Motor Vehicles     20% 

Water & Electricity Supply    10% 

Library books & Periodicals   20% 

Cloaks      20% 

Machinery     20% 

Others       20% 

 

Land 

Lands consist of around 224 acres at various locations as follows. 

Oluvil 178.98  acres 

Samanthurai 6.72 acres 

Malwatta 35.25  acres 

Weeramunai 3.00 acres 

Mountlavinia APC 17.64 perch  

 

Land is valued at fair value in year 2011, as determined by the Valuation Department, Uva 

Provincial Office. Meanwhile, Mountlavinia APC land is valued in 2016.  

(d)Revaluation of the Property, Plant, &Equipments 

The lands of the university have been revalued and recognized to the accounts with effect from 31st 

December 2011. 
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South Eastern University of Sri Lanka 

Accounting Policies 

3.2. TAX 

(a) Income Tax 

University is not liable to pay income tax on its’ net income according to the prevailing tax rules. 

 
(b) Payee Tax 

University currently remits payee tax after deducting from monthly salaries of the liable employees 

for income tax which is not a part of the University expenditure. Hence, Payee tax is not disclosed in 

the accounts of the University. 

 

3.3. INVENTORIES 

Inventories of the University have been physically verified and valued at cost as at 31st December 

2018. The cost incurred in bringing inventories to its percent location, are accounted on FIFO basis. 

 
3.3.1 

Stock verification as at 31/12/2018 was carried out by the Board of Survey appointed by the Vice 

Chancellor (Accounting Officer), SEUSL. 

The Physical quantities were verified and values were calculated. The certified values of the stock at 

the Main Store at the SEUSL/Oluvil premises, Maintenance (Sub Store) at SEUSL/Oluvil premises 

and the sub store at the Faculty of the Applied Science, Sammanthurai were verified and the values 

are taken in the books of Accounts. The List of Items for which the rates could not verify at the time 

of verification is given in the schedule. 

 

3.4. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

Trade and other receivables are stated at the amount they are estimated as per SLPSAS 01 that is due 

to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date. No provision has been made for bad and 

doubtful receivables. 

 
3.4.1 BOND VIOLATION AND RECEIVABLES 

There are outstanding loan balances aggregating amount of Rs. 227,969.00 from two non-academic 

staff and an academic staff and Bond Violation aggregating amount of Rs. 11,604,226.29 from four 

academic staff and two non-academic staff who have vacated their posts.  

 
Actions taken to recover the above stated outstanding (of Employees) 

I. Recoveries are made from UPF outstanding 

II. Legal action has been taken 

 

3.5. INVESTMENTS IN FIXED DEPOSITS 

 

Investments in Fixed Deposits are stated at cost. 
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South Eastern University of Sri Lanka 

 

    Accounting Policies 
 

3.6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents disclosed in the statement of financial position and the cash flow 

statement comprised balances of current and saving accounts and the cash in hand. 

 

3.7. LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS 

All known liabilities as at the balance sheet date are included in the financial statements and 

adequate provisions are made for liabilities which are known to exist but the amount of which 

cannot be determined accurately. 

Obligations payable on demand or within one year of the balance sheet date are treated as current 

liabilities in the balance sheet. Liabilities payable after one year from the balance sheet date are 

treated as non-current liabilities in the balance sheet. 

 

3.7.1 PROVISION FOR PENDING LEGAL CASES 
 

Provision has been made in the Financial Statements for following Pending Legal Cases. 

i. A case in the Court of Appeal, Colombo against a Lecturer for his appointment and 

promotion, Lawyer fee of Rs. 50,000.00 is needed to be paid. 

ii. Complaint by 27 Ad-hoc employees at the Labour office, Kalmunai for default in EPF 

payment. Approximately payment of Rs. 3,780,000.00 is to be paid in forthcoming 

Financial Year.   

 

3.7.2 

The Contingent Liabilities of the University as at 31.12.2018 are shown in the below given schedule . 

 

Case No Court Details Details of Cases Foreseen Outcome 

SC (Contempt) 
Application No. 
06/2016 

Supreme Court, 
Colombo 

A case filed a Lecturer on the 
order of the SC on the FR 
application for the delayed 
payment of excess amount of 
Rs. 80, 111.34 

May be needed to pay 
AG’s fee of 
approximately Rs. 
100,000.00 

CA (Writ) 
Application No. 
41/2017 

Court of Appeal, 
Colombo 

Challenging an appointment for 
a Lecturer post in the Faculty of 
Islamic Studies and Arabic 
Language. 

May be needed to pay 
AG’s fee of 
approximately Rs. 
100,000.00 

Appeal No. USAB 
– 909 

Universities 
Service Appeal 
Board, Colombo 

Challenging an appointment for 
a Lecturer post in the Faculty of 
Islamic Studies and Arabic 
Language. 

May be needed to pay 
AG’s fee of 
approximately Rs. 
100,000.00 

CA (Writ) 
35/2018 

Court of Appeal, 
Colombo 

Challenging certain 
appointments and 
administrative issues.  

May be needed to pay 
AG’s fee of 
approximately Rs. 
100,000.00 

LT/BT/362/2018 Labour Tribunal, 
Batticaloa 

Challenging dismissal of a 
Senior Lecturer and praying for 
restatement and back wages. 

May be needed to pay 
back his remuneration. 
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South Eastern University of Sri Lanka 

    Accounting Policies 
 
3.8. GRATUITY 

Provision for gratuity was made in accordance with gratuity Act No 12 of 1983. The Gratuity 

liability is not externally funded nor actually valued. The gratuity fund Account is shown under the 

Non-Current liabilities in the Statement of financial position, based on half month salary as of the 

last month on financial year of all employees for each completed year of service, commencing from 

the first year of service. 

 
3.9. UNIVERSITY PROVIDENT AND EMPLOYEES‟ TRUST FUND 

Employees of the University are eligible for University Provident Fund (UPF) contributions and 

Employees’ Trust Fund (ETF) contribution in line with respective status and regulations. The 

University contributes the defined percentages (15%) and (3%) of gross emoluments of employees to 

an approved employees’ provident fund and to the employees trust fund respectively, which are 

operated extremely. 

 

3.10. ACCOUNTING FOR GRANT 

Grants that compensate the University for expenses incurred are recognized as revenue in the 

Income Statement in the same period in which the expenses are recognized. Grants that compensate 

the University for the Cost of as asset are recognized in the Income Statement on a systematic basis 

over the useful life time of the related asset. 

 
3.11. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

All material commitments and contingent liabilities are considered and where necessary 

adjustments or disclosures are made in the financial statements. 

 
3.12. DISCLOSE OF ACCOUNTING INFORMATION OF THE UNIT 

Center for External Degrees and Professional Learning (CEDPL) 

Accounts of Center for External Degrees and Professional Learning have been prepared separately 

and disclosed along with the University Accounts.  

 
Postgraduate Unit (MBA, MA) 

Accounts of Postgraduate Unit (MBA,MA) have been prepared separately and disclosed along with 

the University Accounts.  

 
3.13. INCOME STATEMENT 
 
3.13.1. REVENUE RECOGNITION 

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
university and that it can be reliably measured. 

(a)  Enrolment fees from students are recognized as revenue on receipt. 
(b) Fees on examinations, seminars, courses and other educational and activities are recognized as 

revenue on completion of such activity. 
(c) The fees on fee-levying courses recognized to the income statement based on the stage of 

completion of each courses as at the year end. Lecture fees and payments which are related to 
future periods are shown in the Balance Sheet as income received in advance under the Reserve 
& Restricted funds 

(d) Interest income is recognized on accrual basis. 
(e) Revenue from grant is recognized when control of the contribution or right to receive 

the contribution is confirmed. 
(f) Sponsorship related activities are recognized on receipt 
(g) Other income is recognized on accrual basis 
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South Eastern University of Sri Lanka 

 

                                                      Accounting Policies 
 

3.13.2. EXPENDITURE RECOGNITION 

Expenses are recognized in the income statement on the basis of direct association between cost 

incurred and the earning of specific items of the income. All expenditures incurred in the running of 

the university and maintaining the capital assets have been charged to revenue in arriving at the 

surplus/ deficit for the year. Expenses on examinations, seminars, courses, and other educational 

activities are recognized in the income statement on completion of such activity. 

 

3.14. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE 

The materiality of events occurring after the Balance Sheet date has been considered and appropriate 

adjustments, wherever necessary, have been made in the accounts. 
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 South Eastern University of Sri Lanka  

    

  
 Notes to the Accounts  

    
For the Year ended 31st December Shedule 

2018 2017 

 Rs  Rs 

Note 02 -  Work in Progress       

Kuwaith Friendship Monument   
                               

-               2,100,000.00  
3 Store building for Department of 
Technology    222,861,297.49        122,521,006.47  

Sea side fence at Faculty of Technology                               -                  734,346.99  

Hostel Sarasavi Madura 5 

 
                       -                  369,069.83  

Hydrology lab at FOE                              -                  166,504.00  

Hostel Sarasavi Madura 6                               -                  606,949.89  

Septic tank &pit 100 room Phase III                               -               1,561,011.49  
Generator house 2 at Block "A"                               -                  776,809.19  

Road to FIA Cultural Centre                               -                  724,595.33  
Renovation of "D"Block For SDC           2,077,585.74                                  -    
Improvement Of Cricket Ground           1,566,275.70                                  -    
Car Park Shed For ELTU          1,950,540.17                                  -    
Tissue Culture Lab FASc           1,455,046.88                                  -    
Renovation of Building in Malwattha        13,956,819.94                                  -    
Internal Road for FOT Malwattha        12,494,504.72                                  -    
Mega Store at SEUSL           7,556,168.39                                  -    

  
263,918,239.03     129,560,293.19  

Note 03 - Financial Assets       

Fixed Deposits 3.01 
        

26,569,341.59             2,472,942.19  

    
        

26,569,341.59             2,472,942.19  

Note 04 -  Inventories/Stocks       

Stores Advance Account - Supplies 4.01 6,274,244.28             8,698,221.61  

Stores Advance Accounts - Maintenance 4.02 4,194,579.51             3,476,416.54  

    10,468,823.79  12,174,638.15  

Note 05 - Accounts Receivable       

Security Deposits 5.01 4,778,928.96             4,653,928.96  
Distress Loan 5.02 29,415,621.13           30,643,910.08  

Staff Loan 5.03 60,180.00                   89,250.00  
Vehicle Loan 5.04 536,000.00                510,000.00  
Computer Loan 5.05 759,000.00                885,500.00  
Motor Cycle Loan 5.06 333,233.50                245,570.68  
Festival Advance 5.07 592,500.00                828,750.00  
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South Eastern University of Sri Lanka 

Notes to the Accounts 

 

For the Year ended 31st December Shedule 2018 2017 

  
 Rs  Rs 

Salary Advance 5.08                 20,098.30  
                 

41,498.30  

Special Advance 5.09                   2,500.00                 2,500.00  

Flood Relief Advance 5.10                 29,347.50                  29,347.50  

Bond Violation 5.11         19,204,571.55           14,216,334.81  

Mahapola Scholarship Advance 5.12                  5,000.00                 5,000.00  

Miscellaneous Advance 5.13               135,858.50                523,593.60  

Postal Franking Machine Advance                     9,762.50                36,429.50  

Supplies/Purchasing Advance  5.14                               -                    75,000.00  

Research Advance 5.15                   9,000.00              24,000.00  

Advance For Road 
  

                               
-               2,951,815.00  

Advance For Buildings 
  

                               
-               9,600,516.93  

Library Books / Periodicals Advance 5.16                 86,783.00                  23,525.00  

Dues to SEUSL 5.17         23,353,281.68           41,739,354.32  
Dues  from CEDPL               6,860,919.75                  81,148.00  

Salary Receivable 5.18            3,697,964.76             5,252,735.61  

Receivable from HETC                 182,716.02                182,716.02  

Dues from PGU              4,476,087.78                113,840.56  
Petty Cash  5.19                      160.00                             -    

 
      

            94,549,514.93        112,756,264.87  

Note 06 - Cash & Cash Equivalents       

 
      

Peoples Bank - 228 1001 7000  1696                 227,790.81           10,823,440.76  

Peoples Bank - 228 1001 7000  1700         115,052,757.26           16,037,079.00  

Peoples Bank - 228 1001 9000  1704              8,384,566.13             1,581,209.45  

Peoples Bank - 228 1001 0000  1708                 306,272.55                306,272.55  

Peoples Bank - 228 1001 5000  1715              6,618,014.76           11,177,313.32  

Peoples Bank - 064 1001 7000  0025                 162,566.75             1,066,284.25  

Peoples Bank - 004 1001 5021  0926              71,168.50                  81,375.44  

Peoples Bank - 064 1001 6000  0950                   85,502.13                732,488.02  

          130,908,638.89           41,805,462.79  

Note 07 - Restricted Funds       

Memorial Price Funds 7.01               248,000.00                148,000.00  
Short ICIT Course           434,454.00        434,454.00  
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   South Eastern University of Sri Lanka 

   Notes to the Accounts 

  

For the year ended 31st December Sedule 2018 
Rs 

2017 
Rs 

Note 07 - Restricted Funds Cont…       

Scholership for Foreign Students                264,600.00          52,500.00  
UNDP Grant   165,077.50              165,077.50  
Asia Foundation Research Grant             30,944.00  30,944.00  
Centre for Gender Equity   511,421.25            850,000.00  

FOE/Earth Bricks Testing 
  409.95               -    

    1,654,906.70            1,680,975.50  

Note 08 - Capital Grant       

Capital Grant Spent 08.01    3,211,488,951.61     3,395,398,700.57  

Capital Contribution – MRR 08.02       119,046,484.93        119,046,484.93  

Capital Grant Spent – IRQUE 08.03       117,123,396.96        117,123,396.96  

Capital Contribution – Kuwaith fund 08.04    2,272,609,823.17     1,711,601,037.10  

Capital Contribution – MOHE 08.05    1,312,601,873.30        887,104,648.30  

Capital Grant-Unspent      88,765,359.82      5,461,780.05  

Donation 08.06       177,727,920.96        125,687,739.63  

       7,299,363,810.75     6,361,423,787.54  

Note 09 - Reserves       

Accumulated Fund   (1,710,911,738.23) (1,268,910,937.26) 

Net surplus/Deficit for the period   (57,517,296.31) (442,000,800.97) 

    (1,768,429,034.54) (1,710,911,738.23) 

Revaluation Reserves 09.01       450,200,000.00        450,200,000.00  

          450,200,000.00        450,200,000.00  

Note 10 - Gratuity       

Provision for Gratuity 10.01       146,379,772.00        115,201,364.50  

          146,379,772.00        115,201,364.50  

Note 11 - Provision for Legal Cases       

Provision for Legal Cases           3,830,000.00                              -    

    3,830,000.00                   -    
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  South Eastern University of Sri Lanka 

  
  Notes to the Accounts 

   

For the year ended 31st December Sedule 2018 
Rs 

2017 
Rs 

Note 12 - Accounts Payables       

Refundable Deposit -Science Lab  12.01 745,800.00  1,788,900.00  

Refundable Deposit -Library 12.02 181,100.00  393,900.00  

Refundable Deposit- Hostel  12.03 2,097,900.00      2,287,700.00  

Refundable Deposit - Contractors 12.04       1,313,000.00  669,000.00  

Refundable Deposit - Suppliers 12.05 539,000.00             460,000.00  

Retention Money - Contractors 12.06         15,558,674.17     15,938,659.88  

Retention Money - Supplier 12.07         11,622,720.05          16,813,445.46  
Dues from SEUSL 12.08         14,364,921.52          13,497,199.39  

    
   46,423,115.74         51,848,804.73  

Note 13 -  Other Income       

Registration Fees           4,154,915.00          4,022,190.00  

Examination Fees   271,824.00             174,445.00  

Interest     2,146,096.08            1,636,310.63  

Rent           2,550,730.60  2,398,100.00  

Sales   1,220,689.30          1,958,523.77  

Fines           1,417,439.02  2,857,579.06  
Miscellaneous Income      15,665,207.60      34,010,395.59  

    
 27,426,901.60          47,057,544.05  
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19. Report of the Auditor Genaral 
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20. Observations to the Report of the Auditor General 

 

SEUSL/VC/AR/2018/02                             
 12 June 2019 

 

Auditor General, 

National Audit Office, 

Colombo. 

 

Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements of the South 

Eastern University of Sri Lanka for the year ended 31 December 2018 in 

terms of Section 12 of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018. 

 

This has reference to your report dated 30th May 2019. We give below our 

observations for the queries raised in the report 

 

1.   Financial Statements 

1.1   Qualified Opinion  
 
1.2   Basis for Qualified Opinion  

 
(a) Accounting  Deficiencies 

(i) As we have stated in the Annual Statement of Accounts 2018 

submitted to the Auditor General, as usual practice, we have 

attached a separate set of Accounts for the Center for External 

Degrees and Professional Learning (CEDPL) and Post Graduate 

Unit signed by the Accounting Officer and a member of the 

University Council. In addition to that, we have attached another 

Financial Statement incorporating the transactions of CEDPL and 

Post Graduate Unit. However, action will be taken to submit the 

Consolidated Financial Statement incorporating the CEDPL and 
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Post Graduate Unit in the main Financial Statements of the 

University from next year onward. 

 
(ii) Action was already taken to amortize the Capital Grants on a 

systematic basis over the useful life time. In this context we have 

already amortized the Capital Grants for the year 2018.  However 

action will be taken to amortize the capital grant pertaining to the 

period from 1995 to 2017 in forth coming year. 

(b) Un-reconciled  

Noted. Action will be taken to reconcile the difference indicated 

in the query.  

1.3  Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with 

Governance for the Financial Statements  

 “Noted” 

1.4   Auditor‟s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  

 “Noted” 

2.   Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  

 “Noted” 

2.1  “Noted” 

2.2   

Reference to law/ 

direction  

 Description 

(a) Universities Act,  

No.16 of 1978 

  

--------------------------   

Section 99  The amount of Rs. 115,809,743 in the 

Fixed deposits (FD) in the self-
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financing courses and receivables are 

related to the receipt from the 

students, accumulated interest 

earned from FDs of the self-financing 

courses conducted by the university. 

These FDs are withdrawn then and 

there and used for the operation of 

the activities of the self-financing 

courses. However, the portion of the 

University contribution is separately 

shown in the Financial Statement and 

maintained a separate Bank Account. 

 
Further, Instruction has given in the 

2017 audit query, it has observed that 

the university could have been 

earned an income approximately 

Rs.2,000,000, if this money was 

invested in a fixed deposit. 

Hence in this recommendation 

university deposited this money in a 

fixed deposit. 

(b) Establishments Code 

of the University 

Grants Commission 

and the Higher 

Educational 

Institutions 

---------------------------

  

 

Noted. Board of Survey will be 

appointed to conduct the Survey for 

the items specified in the query. 
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Section 2.1 of 

Chapter XXVI 

(i) Section 3.3 of 

Chapter XXVI 

as amended by 

the 

Establishment 

Circular Letter 

No. 04/2013 

dated 10 April 

2013 of UGC. 

  Noted. The Board of Survey (2017) 

was conducted in the year 2018 and 

the report was submitted to the 

relevant department. The Board of 

Survey (2018) was not conducted in 

the year 2019. Stock verification in 

the University libraries are being 

discussed at the Standing Committee 

on Libraries and Information 

Sciences (SCOLIS) of University 

Grants Commission and prepared a 

document on “Policy on Stock 

Verification Procedure in the 

University Libraries” where it was 

recommended to carry out 

verification of the stock of library 

books once in every five years 

(section 3 of the document) 

considering a large volumes of 

library materials, difficulties 

encountered in carrying out the 

verification and obstacle to the 

readers to enjoy the library services 

and facilities.   

(ii) Sections 3 and 

4 of the 

Chapter XXVI  

 A Board of Survey of unserviceable 

articles has already been appointed 

to dispose the unserviceable articles 
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and unusable materials. 

(c) Financial 

Regulations of the 

Government of the 

Democratic Socialist 

Republic of Sri 

Lanka – FR 571 

 

 A sum of Rs. 7,999,618.57 had been 

kept as refundable deposits in 

respect of retention money of 

contractors and suppliers. These 

amounts will be released on the 

request of contractors and suppliers 

when the works and defect liability 

period is completed after obtaining 

the satisfaction report of the user 

departments. However, action will 

be taken to bring them under the 

revenue of the university which are 

remaining for more than 02 years.  

(d) Treasury Circular 

No. IAI/2002/02 

dated 28 November 

2002. 

 Finance Division maintains Fixed 

Assets Register on a computerized 

system including the details of the 

computers and accessories for the 

preparation of the Financial 

Statements. In addition to this, steps 

have been taken to prepare a separate 

Fixed Asset Register for computers 

and accessories according to the 

Circular. However, since it is a long 

process and time consuming, we 

need a considerable time period to 

complete this fixed asset register for 

computers and accessories. hopefully 
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we expect to complete the register by 

the end of 2019 

(e) Circular Letters of 

the University 

Grants Commission. 

--------------------------- 

  

(i) No. 10/2017 

dated 10 July 

2017 

 As a common practice, the arrival 

and departure of academic staff are 

not maintained in the public 

University system in Sri Lanka. 

Further, the University system is 

facing challenges in implementing 

this system to the academic staffs 

even though this matter is 

continuously raised by the audit 

queries.   

(ii) No. 07/2016 

dated 22 

September 2016  

 This payment was made due to the 

oversight of the circular. However, 

rectification been done and the new 

circular has been implemented from 

September 2018 onwards. Action will 

be taken to recover the amounts paid 

against the circular.  

(f) Guideline approved 

by the Council at its 

212th meeting on 26 

May 2018 

-------------------------- 

  

(i) Para 4.2 of  Noted. Strict Instructions will be 
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Evaluation of 

Answer Scripts 

given to the Deputy Registrar / 

Examination to verify whether the 

common guideline is implemented, 

when paper packets are returned to 

the Department of Examination. 

Actions will be taken to fix a checklist 

to the packet of answer script and it 

will be certified by the relevant head 

of department whom the packets are 

submitted to the examination branch. 

These instructions will be 

communicated to each faculty for 

their strict compliance. Therefore we 

hope that this will be improved in the 

next semester. 

(ii) Para 4.3 of 

Evaluation of 

Answer Scripts 

  Noted. Strict Instructions will be 

given to the Deputy Registrar / 

Examination to verify whether the 

common guideline is implemented, 

when paper packets are returned to 

the Department of Examination. 

Actions will be taken to fix a checklist 

to the packet of answer script and it 

will be certified by the relevant head 

of department whom the packets are 

submitted to the examination branch. 

These instructions will be 

communicated to each faculty for 

their strict compliance. Therefore we 
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hope that this will be improved in the 

next semester. 

(iii) Para 1.8 of the 

Regulations 

Related to 

Maintain 

Attendance 

 Noted and action will be taken to 

rectify this matter in future. Strict 

instructions will be given to adhere 

to this practice as given in the 

regulation. 

 

2.3  “Noted” 

 
2.4  “Noted” 

 
(a) These savings were resulted due to the strikes of non-academic staffs 

during the months of March, April and seizure of the administration 

block by the students during the months of September and October, 

2018. Hence, we were unable to implement some major works during 

the year 2018 as scheduled. However, the works relating to the year 

2018 were already processed in the beginning of the year 2019 and 

funds have been utilized accordingly.  

 
(b) The server had been utilized from 10th July 2017 by the Faculty of 

Technology. Students were also given access to many services 

through this server. Due to the office partitioning work held during 

January 2019, and the subsequent study leave during February 2019 

and end semester examination held during March/ April 2019, this 

particular server was temporarily kept shutdown. The Server is back 

on use / operation soon after the work and examination period is 

over. 
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(c) Purchasing of iMac computers were done using the funds received 

from the AHEAD project. Even though the PRN was raised on 26th 

February 2018, the approval for the AHEAD fund was received on 

26th June 2018 from AHEAD office in Colombo. The procurement 

process was started only after receiving the approval for funds 

(Supporting documents are attached herewith (Appendix 01)). 

 
The allocated funds by the AHEAD project for this procurement had 

to be utilized strictly before end of the year 2018. Accordingly, these 

computers have been procured on 27.12.2018. If we have delayed the 

procurement, the fund would have been withdrawn from the 

allocation to procure these items.  

 
Partition (infrastructure) work of the Laboratory has now been 

completed to fix all these 60 Nos of iMac PCs. Action has been taken 

to set up these PCs to that Laboratory as it is the original location.  

Also the practical sessions in relation to the subject of this PCs have 

been scheduled for the forthcoming new semester which is awaiting 

for commencement. It was already decided to commence programme 

on 06.05.2019. However, due to the security issues prevailed in the 

country, aftermath the Easter Sunday terror attack; it was unable to 

decide a particular date to start the semester. Anyhow, the semester 

will be starting from 17.06.2019.   

 
(d) This building is being used for routine practical classes and as 

examination hall for the Faculty of Applied Science. The laboratories 

concerned could not be used for some period for the intended 

purpose since there were some delays in procuring of Laboratory 

furniture and laboratory equipment. Currently, the laboratory 
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furniture for all laboratories have been supplied and installed and 

more than 70% of the equipment ordered has been supplied.  

 
This building, during the planning and construction stage, was not 

planned accordingly to provide the facilities such as drainage, gas 

and water lines needed for laboratories. Installing these to an 

existing building need to be done very carefully and needs lots of 

proper planning to have sufficient safety measures. However, bids 

were invited for drainage, gas and water line systems and those are 

under the evaluation of the TEC. The evaluation process will be over 

by the end of this month and tender could be awarded by the 2nd 

week of June 2019. Since the selected contractor has to complete the 

work within 2 months period, all the laboratories could be used for 

practical classes from 1st September onwards.  

 
(e) Approval of the council had been obtained for the time extension. 

 
(f) It had been paid based on the recommendation of the consultant. 

Payments to consultant were made as per the agreement. 

 
3 Other Audit Observations 

(a) Action has been taken to recover the dues from the UPF after obtaining 

confirmation of the UGC in respect of M. Satheeskumaran (Rs. 178,812 

as loan balance and Rs. 206,830 as salary receivables – a total of 

Rs.385,642.00) & Mr. MI.Zahir Hussain (Rs. 20,098 as loan balance and 

Rs.1,030,451 as receivable from bond violation – a total of Rs.1,050,549). 

We can get those recovered within 2019 as the documents for the 

purpose are under process. 
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Action has been already initiated by sending a request to the attorney 

General Department to take Legal action against Mr.A.R.M.Imthiyaz to 

recover the loan balance of Rs.29,058 and the bond balance of 

Rs.1,043,137 amount and other dues.  

 
(i)  SRM. Mohammed Arsath (Rs.28,401.00) and MHM. Shiyam 

(Rs.42,614.00) – Steps are taken to communicate with these 

officers to settle the dues. 

(ii)  Jinara Ziyad (Rs.7,547) – This officer had gone abroad on no 

pay leave. Action has been taken to recover the due amount 

from her this month salary. 

Receivable from Bond violation 

Action has been taken to recover the revised breach of bond value of 

Rs. 366,760.33 instead of Rs.345,082.21 and Mr. M.M.M. Mahir 

submitted his consent letter dated 06.12.2018 to the UGC to deduct 

the above amount from his UPF fund (UPF No. XL 000373). In this 

connection, the UPF refund application has been processed and sent 

to the UGC on 28.03.2019. 

We have made several communications with Mr. IM.Ibrahim to 

settle the bond obligations on breach of no-pay leave agreement. 

However, no reply was received from him. Therefore, action will be 

initiated to institute legal action against him. 

 
Receivable from contractors and institutions 

 Action will be taken to recover the total due amount of Rs. 

138,699 form the 4 contractors (M/S Dissa Bulders, KD Eberd, 

Antony Builders and Edward Christine) which are in respect 
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of electricity bills paid by the university to the worksites 

during the construction. 

 We have initiated action to reimburse the amount (Rs.139,800) 

form the UGC which was paid by the SEUSL as a Financial 

assistance to Travel Grant for post Graduate Training Abroad 

to Mr. Aslam Saja.  

 The payment of Rs. 182,716.00 was spent by the University on 

behalf of the HETC project.  However, since the project was 

completed and no longer existing in the University, action will 

be taken to write off this amount with the recommendation of 

the Finance Committee and approval of the University 

Council. 

 
(b) We have already implemented a panel marking system and have 

decided to release the results within a three months time period. 

This decision was communicated to the faculties of Arts and 

Culture and Management and Commerce to comply with. If they 

won’t be able to release the results within a three months period, 

the payments for marking will not be done in the future. 

Implementation of this will make sure the timely completion of 

the degree programmes. Strict instructions are already given to 

the Director/CEDPL and AR/CEDPL to adhere to the decision 

taken in this regard.    

 
(c) We have already implemented a panel marking system and have 

decided to release the results within a three months time period. 

This decision was communicated to the faculties of Arts and 

Culture and Management and Commerce to comply with. If they 

won’t be able to release the results within a three months period, 
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the payments for marking will not be done in the future. 

Implementation of this will make sure the timely completion of 

the degree programmes. Strict instructions are already given to 

the Director/CEDPL and AR/CEDPL to adhere to the decision 

taken in this regard.    

  
(d) As per the decision of the Council of the University taken at its 

224th meeting held on 16.02.2019, action was taken to refer the 

matter to the Attorney General Department for clarification 

according to the UGC's directive. Once we receive the directive, 

action will be instituted accordingly. 

 
(e) The University has no control over the number of students 

enrolled as the UGC sends the list of students to the University 

based on Z-score and as the applications received from the 

students. Even though student lists are sent, some of them get 

other universities due to filling of vacancies in those universities 

based on the choices of students. Some students, even though got 

admission to the University, they opt for other options available 

for them. Therefore, we do not have any control over the number 

of students get registered with us.  

 
(f)  

Faculty 
No. of 
students 

Academic staff 

Standard 
based on 
student : 
staff 
ratio 

Actual 
cadre 
available 

Filled cadre 
vacancies 
(permanent, 
temporary 
and 
contract 
basis) 

Actual 
Shortage 
based on 
available 
cadre in 
% 

FAC 1183 18:01 77 71 7.79% 

FMC 1301 18:01 49 35 28.57% 

FAS 647 10:01 77 57 25.97% 
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FIA 1197 18:01 42 34 19.04% 

FE 452 10:01 90 51 43.33% 

FT 304 10:01 33 27 18.18% 

 

 During the previous cadre revision, even though more cadre was 

requested (At that time we did not have the circular that has 

given the student: staff ratio. That circular was issued on 12th 

February 2019.), the cadre was not approved to fulfil the 

requirements. Some faculties are facing difficulties in offering 

lectures due to non-approval of requested cadre provisions by the 

Department of Management Services.  

 As given in the table, the actual cadre vacancies available are 

filled in a satisfactory manner and the shortage is minimal.  

Action was taken to request more cadre based on the standard by 

meeting the dead line of June 2019. Once, more cadre vacancies 

are approved by the Department of Management Services, action 

will be taken to fill those cadre vacancies.    

 
(g) We had already calculated the percentage of employments 

relating to the education field acquired by the graduates. 

 
Distribution of Employment by Economic Sector 

Economic Sector Percentage 

Construction/Engineering 16.18% 

Education 41.18% 

Health Care 4.12% 

Hotels/Travels/Tourism 2.06% 

IT 6.76% 

Manufacturing 9.71% 

Telecommunication 1.18% 

Bank Finance/ Insurance 9.12% 

Agriculture/Dairy 2.94% 

Other 5.88% 
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 Distribution of Employment by Economic Sector and by Faculty 

Economic Sector FAC FMC FAS FIA FE 

Construction/Engineering 3.17% 7.02% 11.11%  81.25% 

Education 74.60% 20.18% 55.56% 55.74% 12.50% 

Health Care 7.94% 2.63% 3.70% 6.56%  

Hotels/Travels/Tourism 1.59% 3.51%  3.28%  

IT 6.35% 14.04% 3.70% 1.64%  

Manufacturing 1.59% 15.79% 14.81% 8.20% 2.08% 

Power and Energy 
 

0.88% 0.00% 0.00% 4.17% 

Telecommunication 1.59% 0.88% 1.85% 1.64%  

Bank Finance/ Insurance  21.93% 7.41% 3.28%  

Agriculture/Dairy  1.75% 1.85% 11.48%  

Other 3.17% 11.40% 
 

8.20%  

 

It is important to note that the female student population of some 

faculties are very high and all of them are not opting for a job 

even though they have earned a degree. This will also need to be 

considered when calculating employment of graduates.  

 
(h) For a newly established faculty, application for the recognition of 

a study programme for the first time should cover the details of 

the programme delivery from the first year of studies to final 

(fourth) year of studies. Accordingly, the Faculty promptly 

initiated the application formalities with the Institution of 

Engineers Sri Lanka (IESL) in 2017 when the first batch of 

students was in their final year of studies. Subsequently, the 

panels appointed by the IESL visited the Faculty in January 2018 

for evaluation of the study programmes. The IESL decisions were 

however conveyed to the Faculty in October 2018. Upon receipt of 

the decisions, the Faculty clarifying their concerns appealed to the 

IESL in October 2018 to reconsider their decisions on the 

recognition of the degrees of Electrical & Electronic Engineering 

and Mechanical Engineering. The Faculty is awaiting the IESL 

response to the appeals. 
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(i) World and Local University ranking of University generally 

fluctuates over time. Though the University’s current ranking is 

less as compared to what we expected to reach by the end of the 

reporting period, university has achieved significant progress as 

compared to the base line year of the present Strategic plan. This 

fluctuation or decline may also be attributed to changes in the 

evaluation criteria and weight thereof being used by the 

organization operating this scheme of ranking. However. The 

university has made some reform to achieve the desired target on 

Webometric ranking through introduction of Learning 

Management Systems for each faculty, reformation of e-repository 

of the University and constitution of ICT advisory board formed 

for the purposes inter alia of continuous monitoring of University 

website and its impact on Webometric ranking. As the ranking 

such as Webometrics and QS are providing a numbered league 

table and this rankings are not comparable due to many 

shortcoming in those. The University Grants Commission is in the 

process of introducing a localized ranking system which will rank 

the state universities accordingly.   

 
 
Prof. M.M.M. Najim 

Vice Chancellor 

South Eastern University of Sri Lanka. 

              

 Cc. Senior Assistant Internal Auditor 
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